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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 
March 30, 2017 
 
Board of Directors of 
Glen Cove Industrial Development Agency  
Glen Cove, NY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

State Law requires the Glen Cove Industrial 
$ÅÖÅÌÏÐÍÅÎÔ !ÇÅÎÃÙ ɉȰ)$!ȱȟ ÔÈÅ Ȱ!ÇÅÎÃÙȱɊ 
publish a complete set of financial statements 
presented in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP) applied to 
governmental entities.  The financial 
statements are to be audited by a certified 
public accountant in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States.  Pursuant to that 
requirement, we hereby issue this 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) of the Agency for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2016.   
 
In addition to meeting legal requirements, 
this report is intended to present a 
comprehensive summary of significant 
financial data to meet the needs of citizens, 
taxpayers, and employees, financial 
institutions, intergovernmental agencies, 
creditors, partners and Glen Cove Industrial 
$ÅÖÅÌÏÐÍÅÎÔ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ "ÏÁÒÄ ÏÆ $ÉÒÅÃÔÏÒÓȢ  
 
This Agency has produced the CAFR in 
conformance with the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement 34.  This report consists of 
ÍÁÎÁÇÅÍÅÎÔȭÓ ÒÅÐÒÅÓÅÎÔÁÔÉÏÎÓ ÃÏÎÃÅÒÎÉÎÇ 
the finances of the Agency.  Consequently, 
management assumes full responsibility for 

the completeness and reliability of all the 
information presented in this report.  To 
provide a reasonable basis for making these 
representations, management of the Glen 
Cove Industrial Development Agency has 
established a comprehensive internal control 
framework that is designed both to protect 
the AgencyȭÓ ÁÓÓÅÔÓ ÆÒÏÍ ÌÏÓÓȟ ÔÈÅÆÔȟ ÏÒ ÍÉÓÕÓÅ 
and to compile sufficient reliable information 
ÆÏÒ ÔÈÅ ÐÒÅÐÁÒÁÔÉÏÎ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÆÉÎÁÎÃÉal 
statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  
Because the cost of internal controls should 
ÎÏÔ ÏÕÔ×ÅÉÇÈ ÔÈÅÉÒ ÂÅÎÅÆÉÔÓȟ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ 
comprehensive framework of internal 
controls has been designed to provide 
reasonable assurance rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will 
be free from material misstatement.  As 
management, we assert that, to the best of 
our knowledge and belief, this financial 
report is complete and reliable in all material 
respects. 
 
4ÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÆÉÎÁÎÃÉÁÌ ÓÔÁÔÅÍÅÎÔÓ ÈÁÖÅ ÂÅÅÎ 
audited by EFPR Group, CPAs, PLLC, a 
licensed certified public accounting firm.  The 
goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements of the Agency for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2016 are free of material 
misstatement.  The independent audit 
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements, assessing the 
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accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and 
evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. 
 
The independent auditor concluded, based 
upon the audit, that there was a reasonable 
basis for rendering an unmodified opinion 
ÔÈÁÔ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÆÉÎÁÎÃÉÁÌ ÓÔÁÔÅÍÅnts for the 
year ended December 31, 2016 are fairly 
presented in conformity with GAAP.  The 
ÉÎÄÅÐÅÎÄÅÎÔ ÁÕÄÉÔÏÒÓȭ ÒÅÐÏÒÔ ÉÓ ÐÒÅÓÅÎÔÅÄ ÁÓ 
the first component of the financial section of 
this report, which can be found on pages 11 
through 13. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles 
require that management provide a narrative 
introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in 
ÔÈÅ ÆÏÒÍ ÏÆ -ÁÎÁÇÅÍÅÎÔȭÓ $ÉÓÃÕÓÓÉÏÎ ÁÎÄ 
!ÎÁÌÙÓÉÓ ɉȰ-$Ǫ!ͼɊ.  This letter of transmittal 
is designed to complement the MD&A and 
should be read in conjunction with it.  The 
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ -$Ǫ! ÃÁÎ ÂÅ ÆÏÕÎÄ ÉÎ ÔÈÅ ÆÉÎÁÎÃÉÁÌ 
section of this report immediately following 
the report of the independent auditors.  The 
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ -$Ǫ! ÃÁÎ ÂÅ ÆÏÕÎÄ ÉÎ ÐÁÇÅÓ ρ4 
through 18. 
 
PROFILE OF THE AGENCY 
 
The Agency is a public benefit corporation, 
which was created by New York State 
legislation on May 17, 1974 at the request of 
ÔÈÅ #ÉÔÙ ÏÆ 'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅ ɉÔÈÅ Ȱ#ÉÔÙȱɊ.  The Glen 
Cove IDA has the authority to help not-for-
profit and qualified businesses to relocate, 
expand and build in the City of Glen 
Cove.  Although the Agency is an entity 
independent of the City of Glen Cove 
government, the Mayor is the Chairman of the 
Agency and appoints all members of the 
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ "ÏÁÒÄ ÏÆ $ÉÒÅÃÔors.  He and the 
Executive Director annually direct the Agency 
to implement development projects on the 
#ÉÔÙȭÓ ÂÅÈÁÌÆȢ 

4ÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ "ÏÁÒÄ ÏÆ $ÉÒÅÃÔÏÒÓ ÉÓ ÃÏÍÐÒÉÓÅÄ 
of five members appointed by the Mayor.  The 
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ "ÏÁÒÄ ÉÓ ÒÅÓÐÏÎÓÉÂÌÅ ÆÏÒ ÈÉÒÉÎÇ ÔÈÅ 
AgÅÎÃÙȭÓ %ØÅÃÕÔÉÖÅ $ÉÒÅÃÔÏÒȟ ×ÈÏÓÅ 
responsibility it is to carry out the policies of 
the Board, to oversee the day-to-day 
operations of the agency, and to hire the 
heads of the various departments. 
 
The Agency is considered a discretely 
presented component unit of the City of Glen 
Cove, because the City of Glen Cove Mayor 
appoints thÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ "ÏÁÒÄ ÏÆ $ÉÒÅÃÔÏÒÓȟ and 
the City of Glen Cove is obligated for the 
indebtedness of the Agency. 
 
4ÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÍÉÓÓÉÏÎ ÉÓ ÔÏ ÉÍÐÒÏÖÅ ÅÃÏÎÏÍÉÃ 
conditions in the City of Glen Cove.  The 
Agency operates to attract, retain and expand 
businesses within its jurisdiction through the 
provision of financial incentives to private 
entities.  The Agency is legally empowered to 
buy, sell or lease property and to provide tax 
exempt financing for approved projects.  Real 
property owned or controlled by IDA is 
exempt from property and mortgage 
recording taxes, and the value of these 
exemptions can be passed through to assisted 
businesses.  Moreover, purchases related to 
IDA projects can be exempt from State and 
local sales taxes.  While IDA properties are tax 
exempt, businesses occupying IDA-owned 
properties typically make payments in-lieu-
of-taxes (PILOTs) that are paid to the City of 
Glen Cove.  
 
FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL 
CONDITIONS 
 
The City of Glen Cove is located in Nassau 
County, between Hempstead Harbor and 
Oyster Bay and faces the Long Island Sound.  
Glen Cove is accessible by the Long Island 
Expressway and Northern State Parkway via 
State Route 107 (Arterial Highway) and Glen 
Cove Road.  The Long Island Rail Road and 
the Nice Bus System provide accessible public 
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ÔÒÁÎÓÐÏÒÔÁÔÉÏÎ ÔÏ 'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅȭÓ ÒÅÓÉÄÅÎÔÓ.  The 
City is currently interviewing Ferry Operators 
as another means of transportation to New 
York City.  Glen Cove is an attractive 
waterfront community with a variety of 
housing opportunities and excellent natural 
resources. 
 
Population 
 
The following table presents population 
trends for the City of Glen Cove and other 
cities and towns in the Nassau County: 
 

NASSAU COUNTY POPULATION TRENDS 

 Est. 2016 2015 2014 

City of Glen Cove 27,400 26,964 27,191 

City of Long Beach 37,280 33,275 33,552 

Town of Oyster Bay 293,214 294,716 294,910 

Total Nassau County 1,361,500 1,339,532 1,352,146 
    

 
The population data is based upon the US 
Census data.  
 
The population of the City increased by 436 
(1%) from 2015 to 2016 and decreased 227 
(1%)), from the 2014 to 2015.  The 
population increases for the entire county 
was 21,968 (2%) from 2015 to 2016 and 
decreases for the entire county was 12,614 
(1%) from 2014 to 2015.  The City had a 
relatively similar population increase as did 
the City of Long Beach.  
 
A new wave of immigration has made Glen 
#ÏÖÅȭÓ ÐÏÐÕÌÁÔÉÏÎ ÉÎÃÒÅÁÓÉÎÇÌÙ ÄÉÖÅÒÓÅ.  
Racially and ethnically, (60%) ÏÆ 'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅȭÓ 
residents are White, (28%) Hispanic, (7%) 
Black, and (5%) Asian and the balance is 
other, according to 2015 estimated 
Population Census.  At (28%), the proportion 
ÏÆ 'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅȭÓ (ÉÓÐÁÎÉÃ ÐÏÐÕÌÁÔÉÏÎ ÔÏ ÉÔÓ ÔÏÔÁÌ 
population is almost two times greater than 
the proportion in Nassau County in general.  
Regionally, roughly one-half of new 
immigrants to the United States are moving 

directly to the suburbs, rather than the 
traditional mode of moving first to the inner 
city.  This is spurred by the fact that the 
suburbs are now major employment centers 
in their own right.  
 
School enrollment can be used to indicate 
ÈÏ× 'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅȭÓ ÄÅÍÏÇÒÁÐÈÉÃ ÐÒÏÆÉÌÅ ÉÓ 
evolving.  As of 2015-2016 school year, there 
were 3,179 Glen Cove youngsters enrolled in 
the Glen Cove school system (excluding pre-
kindergarten, out-of-district, and Special 
Education students).  Of these students, 1,802 
students were Hispanic, representing 57 
percent of the total, white students have the 
second largest group with 926 students, 
(29%).   
 
Income 
 
According to the US Census, estimates for July 
2016, the number of households, persons per 
household, median household income, per 
capita income and percentage of persons 
below the poverty line for the City of Glen 
Cove, Nassau County and New York State, 
were as follows:   
 

NEW YORK STATE AND CITY OF GLEN COVE 
DEMOGRAPHIC COMPARISON 

 Glen Cove 
State of New 

York 

Households     10,011 8,370,802 

Persons per household  3.22 3.20 
Median household 
 income  $68,647 $58,196 

Per capita money  income  $38,699 $33,617 
Persons below poverty, 
 percent  14.3% 15.7% 

 
 
 
The median income for a household in the 
Census Designated area of the City was 
$68,647.  The per capita income for the City 
was $38,699.  Approximately 14.3% of the 
people were below the poverty line in the City 
of Glen Cove. 
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Economy of the City of Glen Cove 
 
The City is in full steam ahead with its 
campaigns to attract new retail tenants, 
particularly in the downtown business 
district .  A wide variety of national and 
regional retailers and service providers have 
ÂÅÅÎ ÃÏÎÔÁÃÔÅÄȢ  4ÈÅ Ô×Ï ÐÒÏÇÒÁÍÓ ÁÒÅ Ȱ'ÌÅÎ 
#ÏÖÅ ÉÓ ÏÐÅÎ ÆÏÒ ÂÕÓÉÎÅÓÓȟȱ ÁÎÄ Ȱ'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅ Á 
sound invÅÓÔÍÅÎÔ ÂÅÇÉÎÓ ÈÅÒÅȢȱ   
 
The Agency, the City and County officials are 
working closely with the management team 
from Photo Circuits  and Konica to identify 
new tenants and new uses for these facilit ies.  
 
The Agency has considered the national 
market trends in various industries and has 
acted proactively to protect and bolster Glen 
#ÏÖÅȭÓ ÅÃÏÎÏÍÉÃ ÂÁÓÅ.   
 
In November 2016, The Glen Cove Industrial 
Development Agency, the City of Glen Cove 
and the Glen Cove Community Development 
Agency sold the Waterfront Properties to the 
Redeveloper, RXR Glen Isle Partners, LLC.  
This mixed-use development on the north  
 

 
side of Glen Cove Creek will provide luxury  
and workforce housing, construction and 
post-construction jobs, 75K sq. ft. of 
commercial/retail space with shops and 
restaurants, marinas and 27+/- acres of 
public parks and amenities.  Construction 
should begin in the spring of 2017 on The 
Garvies Point Project. 
 
Tourism is stimulated by the use of Glen Cove 
Creek and Hempstead Harbor by pleasure 
crafts.  Several estates have been re-
envisioned as bases for institutions and a 
conference center.  Industry and offices have 
flourished in the south of Glen Cove, which is 
accessible to the major highways.  The land at 
Glen Cove Creek is undergoing remediation at 
vacant and contaminated industrial sites in 
preparation for mixed-use redevelopment.  
 
The Restaurant Industry has proven to be a 
durable industry  in the City.  The Gateway 
study indicates that The City should conduct 
its marketing to promote the City as a 
restaurant destination. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

EMPLOYMENT STATISTICS FOR VARIOUS AREAS IN LONG ISLAND 
 January 2017  January 2016 

Area 

Civilian           
Labor 
Force 

Number     
Employed 

Unemployed  Civilian           
Labor 
Force 

Number     
Employed 

Unemployed 

Number Rate  Number Rate 

Suffolk County 768,500 732,400 36,100 4.7%  773,800 736,700 37,1,00 4.8% 

Nassau County 689,300 661,200 28,100 4.1%  694,800 666,000 28,900 4.2% 

Glen Cove City 14,000 13,300 700 4.9%  14,100 13,400 700 4.9% 

Long Beach City 19,300 18,500 700 3.9%  19,400 18,700 700 3.6% 

Oyster Bay Town 152,000 146,300 5,700 3.8%  153,100 147,300 5,800 3.8% 
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The 2016 estimates from the Census Bureau 
for job and income statistics indicate that 
'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅȭÓ ÁÖÅÒÁÇÅ ÁÎÄ ÍÅÄÉÁÎ ÈÏÕÓÅÈÏÌÄ 
income levels ($105,303 and $68,647, 
respectively) are substantially lower than 
those of Nassau County ($126,112 and 
$96,332, respectively.  The State of New York 
Department of labor provides the following 
information concerning impact of the 
recession on employment and unemployment 
in the City of Glen Cove, Nassau County and 
Nassau and Suffolk Counties.   
 
The average unemployment rate in the City of 
Glen Cove was 3.7% as of January 2017 
compared to 4.6% in NY State.  The number 
of employed persons was 13,300 and 13,400 
in January 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 
Prices 
 
The annual rate of increase in consumer price 
index in New York-Northern New Jersey-Long 
Island, NY-NJ-CT-PA, not seasonally adjusted 
was as follows: 
 

INCREASE IN CONSUMER PRICE INDEX (CPI) 
Year Average Percentage Increase 

2012 2.1 

2013 1.5 

2014 0.3 

2015 0.7 

2016 2.1 

 
Housing 
 
According to a February 2017 report of 
Association of realtors the US existing home 
sales which are completed transactions that 
include single-family, townhomes, co-ops, and 
condominiums increased 5.4 percent to a 
seasonally adjusted annual rate of $5.48 
million in February 2017 from $5.20 million 
in February 2016. 
 
 

In the Northeast region, existing-home sales 
increased 1.5 percent to an annual rate of 
$690K from $680K in February 2016.  The 
median price in the Northeast was $228,900, 
up 7.1 percent from January 2016.  
 
'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅȭÓ ÌÁÎÄÓÃÁÐÅ ÉÓ ÓÕÂÕÒÂÁÎ ×ÉÔÈ ÏÖÅÒ 
90 percent of the dwelling units in detached 
housing.  Glen Cove shows greater diversity 
than Nassau County does (where over 75 
percent of the units are single-family 
detached homes).  The median listing price in 
February 2017 is $628K with the median 
closing price of $490K, houses staying on the 
market for approximately 121 days. 
 
7ÈÉÌÅ 'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅȭÓ ÅÃÏÎÏÍÉÃ ÁÎÄ ÒÁÃÉÁÌ 
diversity are reflected in population and 
housing data, home valuation numbers point 
to the wealth of some Glen Cove residents, as 
well as the potential difficulties many Glen 
Cove residents face in finding affordable 
housing.  In 2016, the estimated median value 
of owner-occupied housing units in Glen Cove 
exceeded that of Nassau County ($473,200 
and $446,400) as well as the United States 
median value of $178,600. 
 
While the market value of housing in Glen 
Cove may be out of reach for a number of 
residents, Glen Cove also happens to contain a 
larger share of affordable units than other 
communities on the North Shore.  Glen Cove 
is currently home to 340 federally subsidized 
(Section 8) units and 250 affordable units 
administered by the City of Glen Cove 
Housing Authority; there are a total of 590 
units.   
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MAJOR INITIATIVES- ACCOMPLISHMENTS 
 
Glen Cove Waterfront Revitalization Project/  
Garvies Point Project 
 
The IDA closed on the Waterfront 
Revitalization Project in November 2016.  
The IDA entered into a PILOT agreement with 
RXR and received and administrative fee of 
$10M. This project will benefit the City of 
Glen Cove, its citizens and Nassau County by 
reclaiming blighted industrial waterfront 
property for public benefit and enjoyment 
through creating open space, luxury and 
workforce housing and retail/office space. 
282ȭÓ (redeveloper) Garvies Point waterfront 
destination will bring 460 new jobs during 
the construction phase of 5-6 years, and 545 
jobs post-completion. There will also be new 
tax revenues and new money infused into the 
Glen Cove economy.  
 
Construction on Phase I of the Waterfront is 
anticipated to begin in the spring of 2017.  
This will include rental units, a marina and 
green space.  This project estimates that 
3,200 construction jobs will be created over a 
five year build out. Upon the completion of 
the project the City estimates $17M in annual 
tax revenues for the various authorities. 
 
Ferry Terminal Project 
 
In January 2014, the City awarded the 
contract for the construction of the ferry 
terminal building.   The construction was 
completed in the first quarter of 2016 The 
City will be releasing an RFP for a Ferry 
Operator after the construction of the Garvies 
Point Road is complete. The ferry service will 
commence shortly thereafter. 
 
Herbhill Garvies Point Road Project 
 
The Road was awarded in January 2017.  
Construction is anticipated to begin in 

summer of 2017 and should take 
approximately 18 months to complete. The 
estimated cost of the road is approximately 
$26 million.  Funding for the road project will 
be provided by NYSDOT, $6.5 million and $2.5 
million by Empire State Development. The 
balance of the funding will be paid from bond 
proceeds from the Glen Cove IDA. 
 
 
Village Square 
 
The IDA worked aggressively to move the 
ÓÔÁÌÌÅÄ Ȱ6ÉÌÌÁÇÅ 3ÑÕÁÒÅ 0ÉÁÚÚÁȱ ÐÒÏÊÅÃÔ ÂÙ 
considering Eminent Domain procedure.  
Fortunately a private deal was brokered and 
the property was under contract by year-end.  
The IDA is currently working with RXR LLC to 
redevelop the Village Square.  This project 
will also help revitalize the downtown area 
by creating approximately 146 residential 
rental housing units, 15,000 square feet of 
commercial space, open public space 
dedicated to the city,  and approximately 120 
new, on-site parking spaces. 110 additional 
parking is being discussed through a PILOP. 
The IDA estimates 15-25 full time jobs will be 
created from this project as well as 100-150 
construction jobs.    RXR moved quickly to 
create a revised plan and is attempting to 
purchase the adjoining property. The IDA has 
ÁÇÒÅÅÄ ÔÏ ÂÅÇÉÎ ÁÎ %$0ȟ ɉȰÅÍÉÎÅÎÔ ÄÏÍÁÉÎ 
ÐÒÏÃÅÅÄÉÎÇȱɊ ÔÏ ÃÏÎÔÉÎÕÅ ÔÈÅ ÆÏÒ×ÁÒÄ 
progress of the downtown village square.    
 
The Regency at Glen Cove 
 
The City created a new corporation the Glen 
Cove Local Economic Assistance Corporation, 
ɉȰ'#,%!#ȱɊ ÔÏ ÁÓÓÉÓÔ ÔÈÅ .ÁÔÉÏÎÁÌ (ÅÁÌÔÈÐÌÅØȟ 
ɉÄȾÂȾÁ Ȱ4ÈÅ 2ÅÇÅÎÃÙ ÁÔ 'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅȱɊ ×ÉÔÈ ÔÈÅ 
refinancing of their bonds, to allow for the 
expansion of the Regency to include an 
!ÌÚÈÅÉÍÅÒȭÓ unit.  This project closed in April 
2016 and will produce 16 new full time jobs 
as well as 32-35 construction jobs.  The 
construction is expected to take 16 months  
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ÁÎÄ ÂÅÇÁÎ ÉÎ -ÁÙ ςπρφȢ 4ÈÅ 2ÅÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ 0),/4 
was also extended to run concurrently with 
its bonds.  The IDA received an administrative 
fee of $150K. 
 
Samuel Pierce 
 
On December 28, 2016, the IDA entered into a 
PILOT agreement with Michael S. Puntillo 
$ÅÖÅÌÏÐÍÅÎÔ #ÏÍÐÁÎÙȟ ,,#Ȣ ɉȰ3ÁÍÕÅÌ 
0ÉÅÒÃÅȱɊ 4ÈÅ 0),/4 ÂÅÇÉÎÓ ÉÎ ςπρχ ÁÎÄ ÔÈÅ 
IDA received an administrative fee of $40K.   
 
Budgetary Controls 
 
The objective of budgetary controls 
maintained by the Agency is to ensure 
compliance with the budgets approved by the 
Board of Directors.  Activities of the Agency 
ÁÒÅ ÉÎÃÌÕÄÅÄ ÉÎ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÁÎÎÕÁÌ ÂÕÄÇeting 
process.  The annual budget is proposed by 
the Executive Director and submitted to the 
Board of Directors for approval.  
 
The budgets can be amended during the year.  
The Executive Director is authorized to make 
transfers within administrative budget lines.  
 
All other amendments require approval from 
ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ "ÏÁÒÄ ÏÆ $ÉÒÅÃÔÏÒÓ.  The legal 
level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at 
which expenditures may not legally exceed 
appropriations) is the fund level.  
 
4ÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ Board of Directors also adopts 
and uses program budgets, which in total 
ÃÏÍÐÒÉÓÅ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÆÉÎÁÎÃÉÁÌ ÐÌÁÎȢ  4ÈÅ 
program budgets do not expire at the year 
end and are extended until the programs are 
completed.  The completion of the programs 
may require several years.  The Board may 
amend the budget as necessary. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORSô REPORT 

 

 

Board of Directors and Members 

Glen Cove Industrial Development Agency 

Glen Cove, New York: 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Glen Cove Industrial 

Development Agency (the IDA), a component unit of the City of Glen Cove, New York, which 

consist of the statement of net position as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the related 

statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then 

ended, and the related notes to financial statements.  

 

Managementôs Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditorôs Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditorôs 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the entityôs preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entityôs internal control.  
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Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the financial position of the IDA as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements 

of revenues and expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

managementôs discussion and analysis and required supplementary information on pages 14 

through 18 and 36 through 39 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 

information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 

reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 

historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 

information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 

information and comparing the information for consistency with managementôs responses to our 

inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 

basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 

information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 

an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Other Information 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the Glen Cove Industrial Development Agencyôs basic financial 

statements.  Other supplementary information required under General Municipal Law 859, which 

is included on pages 40 to 44 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a 

required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of 

management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 

records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The information included on pages 40 to 

44 has not been subjected to the auditing procedure applied in the audit of the basic financial 

statements and we express no opinion on it. 

 

The introductory section has not been subject to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 

basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express or provide any assurance on it. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 

31, 2017, on our consideration of the IDAôs internal control over financial reporting and on our 

tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 

agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 

of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 

to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report 

is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 

considering the IDAôs internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

       
Williamsville, New York 

March 31, 2017 
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As management of the Glen Cove Industrial  
Development Agency, we offer readers of the 
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ basic financial statements this 
narrative analysis of the !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ financial 
performance and an overview of the !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ 
financial activities for the years ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015.  Please read 
this information  in conjunction with  the 
financial statements.  
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  
 
In 2016, the IDA had a large increase in its 
administration fees due to the Sale of the 
Waterfront Property to the Redeveloper and 
closings on The Regency at Glen Cove and 
MSP Development Company, ɉȰSamuel 
PierceȱɊ.   Administrative fees totaled $10.2M 
for the year.  The following are the financial 
highlights: 
 
Á Total assets and deferred outflows of 

resources as of December 31, 2016 were 
$12,467,440 and $40,788 and were more 
than liabilities  and deferred outflows by 
$126,065 (i.e. net position.)  Net position 
is comprised of Net Investment in Capital 
Assets of $1,705, and Unrestricted net 
position of $124,360.  Total assets 
decreased by $2,984,600 from December 
31, 2015 to 2016.  This is primarily  due to 
the sale of the waterfront property in 
November 2016.  In 2016 the IDA 
recorded additional redeveloper 
advances for professional fees and 
repayment of the HUD Section 108 loans. 
 

Á Net position increased from 2015 to 2016 
by $5,319,445.  This was due to 
recognition of the sale of the waterfront  
property.  Due to the decline in the real 
estate market values in the area, based on 
the appraisal done in October 2012 and 
the Agreement Letter of Sale, dated 
December 6, 2012, the Waterfront  
property  was revalued at $15M, resulting 
in recognition of a $1.8M impairment loss 

in 2016. The utilization  of  the net 
position that was received from sale of 
the Waterfront  land was used to 
reimburse the amounts owed to the CDA, 
to repay the HUD and EPA loans, the City 
and the Enviromental Protection Agency 
(EPA) for remediation expenditures. The 
EPA will let the IDA know in 
approximately 30 days if the IDA will 
have to repay a portion or the full amount 
due to the EPA.  
 

Á Operating revenues increased by 
$10,117,214 (848%) to $11,310,807 in 
2016 from $1,193,593 in 2015.  The 
increase is primarily  due to an increase of 
$10,132,803 of administrative fee 
revenues. There was no grant revenue in 
2016.  
 

Á Total operating expenses decreased by 
$503,212 (22%) to $1,792,447 in 2016 
from $2,295,659 in 2015.  The increase 
was primarily  due to a increase in 
contractual expenses on the Waterfront  
property .  These expenses were 
capitalized and written off to the property 
impairment. 

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 
 
-ÁÎÁÇÅÍÅÎÔȭÓ Discussion and Analysis 
ɉȰ-$Ǫ!ȱɊ serves as an introduction  to the 
basic financial statements and supplementary 
information.  The MD&A represents 
management's examination and analysis of 
the !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ financial condition and 
performance.  Summary financial statement 
data, key financial and operational indicators 
used in the !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ strategic plan, operating 
plan, bond covenants and other management 
tools were used for this analysis.   
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The financial statements report  information  
about the Agency.  The Agency applied full  
accrual accounting methods as used by 
similar  business activities in the private 
sector.  The statements offer short and long-
term financial information.  
 
The financial statements include statements 
of net position; statements of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position; 
statements of cash flows and notes to the 
financial statements.  The statements of net 
position include all of the !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ assets and 
deferred outflows, liabilities  and deferred 
inflows and provide information  about the 
nature and amount of investments.  
 
The statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position presents the results of 
the business activities over the course of the 
year and information  as to how the net 
position changed during the year.  All changes 
in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of the related 
cash flows.  This statement also provides 
information  about whether the Agency has 
successfully recovered its costs through its 
user fees and other charges, profitability  and 
credit worthiness. 
 
The statements of cash flows present changes 
in cash and cash equivalents resulting from 
operating, financing and investing activities.  
The statements present cash receipts and 
cash disbursements information, without  
consideration of the earning events, when an 
obligation arises or depreciation of capital 
assets occurs. 
 
The notes to the financial statements provide 
required disclosures and other information  
that are essential to a full  understanding of 
information  presented in the statements.  The 
notes present information  about the !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ 
accounting policies, significant account 
balances and activities, material risks, 
obligations, commitments, contingencies and 
subsequent events, if any.  Supplementary 
information  has been included as required for 

statutory filing  under General Municipal Law 
859. 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGENCY 
 
One of the most important  objectives of 
financial analysis is to determine if the 
Agency as a whole is better or worse off as a 
result of the ÙÅÁÒȭÓ activities.  Net position 
and the statements of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position provide useful 
information  in this regard.  The statements 
report  the net position of the Agency and 
changes in net position.  The amount of net 
position, the difference between total assets 
and deferred outflows and liabilities  and 
deferred inflows, is a significant measure of 
financial health or financial position.  Over 
time, increases or decreases in the !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ 
net position are indicators of whether its 
financial health is improving or deteriorating.  
However, other non-financial factors such as 
changes in economic conditions, population 
growth, zoning and new or changed 
government legislation should be considered 
in evaluating the financial condition of the 
Agency. 
 
The following comparative condensed 
financial statements and other selected 
information  serve as the financial data and 
indicators for ÍÁÎÁÇÅÍÅÎÔȭÓ monitoring  and 
planning.  
 
NET POSITION 
 
A summary of the !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ net position at 
December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014 is 
presented in the following table and Charts 1 
and 2 on the following page. 
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 NET POSITION 
December 31, 

 

   2014 
 2016 2015 (Restated) 
Assets     
Current and other assets $12,465,735 $15,449,361 $15,350,603 
Capital assets, net 1,705 2,679 3,653 

Total assets 12,467,440 15,452,040 15,354,256 

Deferred  outflows  40,788 26,819 - 

Liabilities      
Long-term liabilities   12,241,417 18,193,001 17,653,193 
Other liabilities   125,847 251,125 308,766 

Total liabilities   12,367,264 18,444,126 17,961,959 

Deferred  Inflows  14,899 1,852,113 1,115,000 

Net position      
Net investment in 
 capital assets   1,705 2,679 3,653 
Unrestricted net 
 position 124,360 (4,820,059) (3,726,356) 

Total net position $126,065 $(4,817,380) $(3,722,703) 
    

 
The amount of current and other assets 
decreased by $2,983,626 (19%) from 
$15,449,361 in 2015 to $12,465,135, in 2016.  
The decrease in 2014 was $98,758 (1%), 
from $15,350,603 in 2014 to $15,449,361 in 
2015.  The development costs of the 
Waterfront land held for sale and the 
impairment of the land were the primary 
reasons for the decreases of the current and 
other assets. 
 
In 2016, cash and receivables accounted for 
$12,423,523 (99%) of the total assets.  In 
2015, the land held for sale was the major 
asset owned by the Agency and accounted for 
$15,031,650 (98%) of the total assets.  
Redevelopment costs of $1,596,982 were 
incurred in 2016 to maintain and develop the 
land. 
 
Total liabilities  decreased in 2016 by 
$6,076,862 (33%) and increased in 2015 by 
$482,167 (3%).  4ÈÅ )$!ȭÓ ÃÕÒÒÅÎÔ ÌÉÁÂÉÌÉÔÉÅÓ 
decreased by $5,951,584, (33%) from 
$18,193,001, on December 31, 2015, to 
$12,241,417, on December 31, 2016.  The 
decrease reflected the amount of debt that 
was repaid in November 2016 when the 
Waterfront  development was sold.  Deferred 
inflows decreased in 2016 by 1,837,214, 

(99%) due to a decrease in advances from the 
redeveloper. 
 
In 2007, the IDA entered into an agreement 
with  the City regarding the interest on the 
amounts it  owed to the City.  The agreement 
provided for a payment of annual interest on 
the net amount ȰÄÕÅ to the #ÉÔÙȱ at the end of 
each year.  All amounts due to the CDA and 
the City are to be reimbursed upon the sale of 
the Waterfront  Property.  For the years ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the interest 
rates used to compute the annual interest 
costs  were 1.13067% and 0.06142% and the 
amounts of accrued interest, during 
construction, were $114,486 and $32,758, 
respectively.   
 
Over a period of 9 years, 1999-2008, the CDA, 
IDA and the City entered into agreements 
with HUD to borrow an aggregate of 
$8,350,000 of Section 108 loans. The 
proceeds of the loans were used to purchase 
and remediate various waterfront properties.  
These loans were fully repaid to HUD on 
December 7, 2016.  In July 2010, the CDA and 
IDA entered into an agreement with Nassau 
County to borrow $552,592 from the EPA 
Brownfield Revolving loan fund program.  
These funds were also used to remediate 
properties and repaid in full on November 30, 
2016.   

CHART 1 
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CHART 2 
 

 

OPERATING RESULTS  
 
The !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ condensed statements of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net 
position are presented in the table below and 
Chart 3. 
 

REVENUES, EXPENSES AND  
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

  2015 2014 
  2016 (Restated) (Restated) 
Operating Revenues    
Fees and other income $11,310,807 1,193,593 1,253,253 
Interest 257 65 407 

Total revenues 11,311,064 1,193,658 1,253,660 
    
Operating Expenses    
Salaries and benefits 187,191 145,945 190,717 
Contractual and other  8,274 972,707 909,962 
Redevelopment costs  1,596,982 1,177,007 1,302,964 
Sale of property, net  4,199,172 - - 

Total expenses 5,991,619 2,295,659 2,403,643 
Increase (decrease) in  
   net position 5,319,445 (1,102,001) (1,149,983) 
Net position, January 1,  
   as restated (5,193,380) (4,091,379) (2,572,720) 
Net position,  
   December 31 $126,065 (5,193,380) (3,722,703) 

    

 
The majority  of the !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ revenues are 
derived from one time administrative fees on 
taxable bonds funded through the Agency, 
and a straight lease fee.  Additionally, the 
Agency imposes a closing fee on bond 
issuances.   
 

Total revenues increased by $10,117,406 
from $1,193,658 in 2015 to $11,311,064 in 
2016.   

 
CHART 3 

 

 
CHART 4 

 

The net position increased by $5,319,445, for 
2016 due to the sale of the waterfront 
property and $1,102,001 for 2015.  
 
Debt Management 
 
The Agency may issue industrial  development 
revenue bonds that are secured by property, 
which is leased to companies who had 
received the bond proceeds.  The bonds are 
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retired  by lease payments collected from 
these companies.   
 
The bonds are not obligations of the Agency 
and the Agency does not record the assets or 
liabilities  resulting from completed bond and 
note issues in its accounts.  Its primary  
function is to arrange financing between the 
borrowing  companies and the bond and note 
holders.  Trustees or banks acting as fiscal 
agents control funds arising from these 
transactions.  The Agency monitors the 
compliance of the organizations with  the 
provisions of the bond contracts.  At the end 
of the year, the Agency had no revenue bonds. 
 
At the year end the Agency owed $3,021,865 
to the CDA and $6,489,958 to the City of Glen 
Cove.  The CDA may pay payroll  expenses on 
behalf of the IDA and then charges the 
Agency.  The CDA funds are obtained from 
Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG).  Also, the City may provide loans to 
the Agency, and pay for personnel and 
interest expenses pertaining to projects on 
behalf of the Agency, and charge the Agency 
for these payments. 
 
The indebtedness to the City and CDA was 
paid from the proceeds of the sale of 
Waterfront  properties.  More information  on 
long-term debt activity  can be found in Note 
7, Ȱ!ÍÏÕÎÔÓ due to or from the City and #$!Ȣȱ 
 
In December 2016, the New York State 
Department of Labor's Index of Coincident 
Economic Indicators (ICEI) for New York 
State decreased at an annual rate of 2.4%.  
This follows an annual rate of decrease of 
2.1% in November 2016.  Over the past year, 
the ICEI has increased by 0.9%. 
 
The ICEI model combines and weights four 
key indicators of statewide economic activity, 
which have historically  moved in conjunction 
with  the state's business cycles that are 
private sector employment; unemployment 
rate; average weekly hours of manufacturing 
workers; and sales tax collections.  
 

Since 1970, there have been seven distinct 
recessions in the U.S. and New York State.  
Recessions in New York have tended to be 
significantly longer than their  national 
counterparts.  This trend has become more 
pronounced over the past 30 years.  The last 
four recessions in New York State (dating 
back to 1981) have averaged just under 2½ 
years in length, while the last four national 
recessions have averaged just over one year 
in duration. 
 
On December 2016, the unemployment rate 
in the City of Glen Cove was 3.5% as 
compared to 4.0% in other New York cities.  
4ÈÉÓ ÒÅÐÒÅÓÅÎÔÓ ÔÈÁÔ 'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅȭÓ 
unemployment is less than other cities in the 
state.  The price decreases in the 
Northeastern United States, as measured by 
the Consumer Price Index for all urban 
consumers, was .98% over the last 12 
months. 
 
The Agency has considered the above and 
other factors in developing its plan for the 
next year.  The IDA, in cooperation with  the 
City of Glen Cove and the Glen Cove 
Community Development Agency, plans to 
continue its efforts in redevelopment of the 
Waterfront  Property.  In addition, the IDA 
plans to expand its assistance to the 
businesses located in the City through federal 
tax exempt revenue bonds, local property  tax 
abatement, sales tax exemptions for 
construction materials and mortgage 
recording tax exemptions. 
 
#ÏÎÔÁÃÔÉÎÇ ÔÈÅ )$!ȭÓ &ÉÎÁÎÃÉÁÌ -ÁÎÁÇÅÍÅÎÔ 
 
4ÈÉÓ ÆÉÎÁÎÃÉÁÌ ÒÅÐÏÒÔ ÉÓ ÄÅÓÉÇÎÅÄ ÔÏ ÐÒÏÖÉÄÅ 
ÔÈÅ ÒÅÁÄÅÒ ×ÉÔÈ Á ÇÅÎÅÒÁÌ ÏÖÅÒÖÉÅ× ÏÆ ÔÈÅ 
)$!ȭÓ ÆÉÎÁÎÃÅÓ ÁÎÄ ÔÏ ÄÅÍÏÎÓÔÒÁÔÅ ÔÈÅ )$!ȭÓ 
ÁÃÃÏÕÎÔÁÂÉÌÉÔÙ ÆÏÒ ÔÈÅ ÍÏÎÅÙ ÉÔ ÒÅÃÅÉÖÅÓȢ  )Æ 
ÙÏÕ ÈÁÖÅ ÑÕÅÓÔÉÏÎÓ ÁÂÏÕÔ ÔÈÉÓ ÒÅÐÏÒÔ ÏÒ ÎÅÅÄ 
ÁÄÄÉÔÉÏÎÁÌ ÆÉÎÁÎÃÉÁÌ ÉÎÆÏÒÍÁÔÉÏÎȟ ÃÏÎÔÁÃÔ ÔÈÅ 
)ÎÄÕÓÔÒÉÁÌ $ÅÖÅÌÏÐÍÅÎÔ !ÇÅÎÃÙȟ %ØÅÃÕÔÉÖÅ 
$ÉÒÅÃÔÏÒ ÁÔ ɉυρφɊ φχφ-ςρττȢ 
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GLEN COVE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(A Component Unit of the City of Glen Cove)  

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015  

 

  2016 
  

2015 
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

     Current assets 
 

    Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,056,523 
 

$ 415,991 
Accounts receivable  

 
10,367,000 

  
- 

Total current assets  12,423,523 
  

415,991 

Noncurrent assets 
     Land held for resale  
 

31,650 
  

15,031,650 
Restricted cash  8,220   1,720 
Prepaid expense  2,342   - 
Equipment, net 

 
1,705 

  
2,679 

Total non-current assets  43,917 
  

15,036,049 

Total assets     12,467,440 
  

15,452,040 

Deferred outflows of resources - pension  40,788   26,819 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
   AND NET POSITION 

     Current liabilities  
 

    Accounts payable and accrued expenses   
 

125,847 
  

251,125 

Noncurrent liabilities  
     Escrow deposits  8,220   1,720 

Compensated absences 
 

9,606 
  

12,449 
Other post-retirement  benefits 

 
315,234 

  
287,875 

Net pension liability  
 

36,534 
  

11,629 
Due to Nassau County 

 
- 

  
371,402 

Due to Environmental Protection Agency 
 

2,360,000 
  

- 
Due to the City of Glen Cove  

 
       Community Development Agency (CDA) 

 
3,021,865 

  
9,515,922 

Due to the City of Glen Cove 
 

6,489,958 
  

7,992,004 

Total non-current liabilities   12,241,417 
  

18,193,001 

Total liabilities     12,367,264 
  

18,444,126 

Deferred inflows of resources - advances from 
developers 

 
14,899   1,852,113 

Net position 
     Net investment in capital assets  
 

1,705 
  

2,679 
Unrestricted net position   

 
124,360 

  
(4,820,059) 

Total net position   $ 126,065 
 

$ (4,817,380) 
 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.  
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GLEN COVE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(A Component Unit of the City of Glen Cove) 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015  

 
 

 
 2016 

  
2015 

Operating Revenues: 
 

    Fees and other revenue $ 11,310,807 
 

$ 1,178,004 
Grant revenue   

 
- 

  
15,589 

Total operating revenues  11,310,807 
  

1,193,593 

Operating Expenses:  
    Salaries and benefits 

 
187,191 

  
145,945 

Contractual expenses 
 

7,300 
  

971,733 
Depreciation expense 

 
974 

  
974 

Redevelopment costs not recoverable 
 

1,596,982 
  

1,177,007 

Total operating expenditures  1,792,447 
  

2,295,659 

Operating Profit or (loss)  9,518,360 
  

(1,102,066) 
Interest income 

 
257 

  
65 

Sale of property, net  (4,199,172)   - 

Change in net position  5,319,445 
  

(1,102,001) 
      
Net position, January 1, as previously stated  (5,193,380)   (3,722,703) 

Prior period adjustment  -   (376,000) 

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  
   (Note 16) 

 
-   7,324 

      Net position, January 1, as restated 
 

(5,193,380) 
  

(4,091,379) 

Net position, December 31 $ 126,065 
 

$ (5,193,380) 

 
The notes to financial statement are an integral part of this statement. 
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GLEN COVE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(A Component Unit of the City of Glen Cove)  

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015  

 
 

  
2016 

  
2015 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
 

    Fees received for services and other revenue $ 11,310,807 
 

$ 1,232,018 
Grant income 

 
- 

  
15,589 

Payment of salaries and benefits 
 

(373,953) 
  

(129,071) 
Cash payments to suppliers of goods and services 

 
(10,099,407) 

  
(1,702,941) 

Net cash used in operating activities  837,447 

  
(584,405) 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:   
   Sale of property - advance from developer  802,828   737,113 

Cash flows from investing activities:   

   Interest 
 

257 

  
64 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  1,640,532 
  

152,772 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

 
415,991 

  
263,219 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 2,056,523 

 
$ 415,991 

 
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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GLEN COVE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(A Component Unit of the City of Glen Cove)  

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015  

(CONTINUED) 
 
 

  

2016 
  

2015 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash  
        used in operating activities:  

 
    Operating profit (loss) $ 9,518,360 

 
$ (1,102,066) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating profit ( loss) 
    to net cash used in operating activities:   

   Depreciation 
 

974 
  

974 
Accounts receivable 

 
- 

  
54,014 

Increase in deferred outflows of resources-pension  
     (noncash) 

 
(13,969)   (12,171) 

Increase in prepaid expense  (2,342)   - 
Increase in net pension liability (non-cash)  24,905   4,305 

Accounts payable and accrued expense 
 

(125,278) 
  

(57,641) 
Other post-employment benefits 

 
27,359 

  
20,550 

Compensated absences 
 

(2,843) 
  

4,190 
Due to City of Glen Cove CDA 

 
(1,502,046) 

  
(235,674) 

Due to Nassau County  (371,402)   10,278 
Due to the City of Glen Cove 

 
(6,494,057) 

  
728,836 

Increase in deferred inflows of resources - pension 
     (noncash)  (222,214) 

  
- 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 837,447 
 

$ (584,405)  

 
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GLEN COVE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(A Component Unit of the City of Glen Cove)  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The Glen Cove Industrial Development 
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ɉÔÈÅ Ȱ)$!ȟ ͼ!ÇÅÎÃÙͼɊ ÁÃÃÏÍÐÁÎÙÉÎÇ 
financial statements are prepared on the 
accrual basis in accordance with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles, as 
set forth by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB).  Revenues and 
expenses are recognized when earned and 
incurred, not when received or paid.  
 
Capital assets, except land and construction in 
process, are depreciated over their estimated 
useful lives.  
 
A. Reporting Entity  
 
The Agency was created by a special act of the 
New York State Legislature on May 17, 1974.  
Under the provisions of Chapter 374 of the 
1974 Laws of New York State, the purpose of 
the Agency is to encourage economic growth 
in the City of Glen Cove.  The Agency is 
exempt from federal, state and local income 
taxes.  The Agency's principal activity and 
source of revenue has been the issuance of 
Industrial and Civic Revenue Bonds and 
Straight Lease Agreements.  The fees received 
from the issuance of the bonds and straight 
lease agreements have been expended for 
legal services, the development of the Glen 
Cove Waterfront, and infrastructure. 
 
All significant activities have been included in 
ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÇÅÎÅÒÁÌ-purpose financial 
statements for the years ended December 31, 
2016 and 2015.  The City of Glen Cove 
exercises oversight responsibility over the 
Agency.  As such, the Agency is a component 
unit of the City of Glen Cove.  The following 
criteria regarding the manifestation of 
oversight were considered by the Agency in 
its evaluation of the Agency activities: 

Á Financial interdependency - The Agency 
is responsible for its debts and is entitled 
to surpluses.  The City of Glen Cove is not 
ÒÅÓÐÏÎÓÉÂÌÅ ÆÏÒ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÄÅÂÔ ÏÒ 
entitled to surplus.  The Agency does not 
receive financial benefit nor does it 
impose financial burden on the City of 
Glen Cove with the exception that the IDA 
is covered against personal injury, 
×ÏÒËÅÒÓȭ ÃÏÍÐÅÎÓÁÔÉÏÎ ÁÎÄ ÏÔÈÅÒ ÒÉÓËÓ 
ÕÎÄÅÒ ÔÈÅ #ÉÔÙȭÓ ÓÅÌÆ-insurance program. 
 

Á Appointment of Government Authority - 
the City of Glen Cove, the primary 
government, appoints all members of the 
organization's governing body, the Board 
of Directors.  The governing board is 
exclusively responsible for all decisions. 
 

Á Appointment of management - The 
officers of the Agency are appointed by 
the Board of Directors.  The activities 
under the purview of management are 
within the scope of the reporting entity 
and management is responsible to the 
Board of Directors. 
 

Á The ability to significantly influence 
operations - The City of Glen Cove can 
ÓÉÇÎÉÆÉÃÁÎÔÌÙ ÉÎÆÌÕÅÎÃÅ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ 
operations.  This authority includes, but is 
not limited to, adoption of program 
budgets, control over assets, including 
facilities and properties, short term 
borrowing, signing contracts, and 
developing new programs. 
 

Á Accountability for fiscal matters - The 
responsibility and accountability over the 
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÆÕÎÄ ÉÓ ÖÅÓÔÅÄ ÉÎ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ 
management and Board of Directors. 
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B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement 
Focus  
 
The Glen Cove Industrial Development 
Agency uses an enterprise fund (proprietary 
fund) to account for its activities.  The 
measurement focus of the proprietary fund is 
the flow of economic resources.  With this 
measurement focus, all assets and liabilities 
associated with the operating statements 
present increases (i.e., revenues) and 
decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets.  
 
As a proprietary fund, the Agency uses the 
accrual basis of accounting, and economic 
resources measurement focus.  Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses are recognized when 
ÉÎÃÕÒÒÅÄȢ  4ÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÕÎÂÉÌÌÅÄ ÒÅÃÅÉÖÁÂÌÅÓ 
are recognized as revenues at year-end.   
 
C. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Agency has adopted GASB statement 9 
ȰReporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and 
Nonexpendable Trust funds and Governmental 
Entities that Use Proprietary Fund 
AccountingȢȱ  &ÏÒ ÐÕÒÐÏÓÅÓ ÏÆ ÒÅÐÏÒÔÉÎÇ ÃÁÓÈ 
flows, all liquid investments (including 
restricted assets) with original maturity of 
three months or less are considered cash 
equivalents. 
 
D. Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable balances are reflected 
net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.  
The allowance for doubtful accounts is the 
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÂÅÓÔ ÅÓÔÉÍÁÔÅ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ÐÒÏÂÁÂÌÅ ÌÏÓÓÅÓ 
in the existing accounts receivable balance.  
The Agency did not have any doubtful 
accounts at December 31, 2016 or 2015. 
 
E. Capital Assets and Long-Term Liabilities  
 
Capital Assets 
 
As a proprietary fund, the capital assets and 
long-term liabilities of the Agency are 
ÁÃÃÏÕÎÔÅÄ ÆÏÒ ÏÎ Á ÃÏÓÔ ÏÆ ÓÅÒÖÉÃÅÓ ÏÒ ȰÃÁÐÉÔal 

ÍÁÉÎÔÅÎÁÎÃÅȱ ÍÅÁÓÕÒÅÍÅÎÔ ÆÏÃÕÓȢ  4ÈÉÓ 
means that all assets and all liabilities 
(whether current or non-current) associated 
with its activities are included in net position.  
As a proprietary fund, the operating 
statements of the Agency present increases 
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net 
position. 
 
Capital assets acquired by the Agency are 
stated at cost (or estimated historical cost) 
including interest capitalized during 
construction, where applicable.  Contributed 
assets are recorded at fair market value at the 
date received.  There are no reversionary 
interests by the grantor in any of the assets, 
the date of donation in the case of gifts.  The 
Agency capitalizes assets whose cost exceeds 
$500.   

 
Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets 
used by the Agency is charged as an expense 
against its operations.  Accumulated 
depreciation is reported in net position.  
Depreciation is provided over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets. 
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of 
the assets.  Estimated useful lives range from 
25-40 years for buildings, 10-17 years for 
improvements other than buildings, and 3-5 
years for equipment.  
 
4ÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÍÅÁÓÕÒÅÍÅÎÔ ÆÏÃÕÓ ÏÎ ÉÎÃÏÍÅ 
determination and capital maintenance 
requires the net amount of interest cost for 
qualifying assets to be capitalized during the 
period of construction.  The Agency has 
capitalized the interest expenses related to 
amounts owed to the City of Glen Cove for the 
Waterfront Development Project.  These were 
considered in connection with the evaluation 
of the impairment of the property. 
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F. Net Position 
 
Unrestricted Net Position  
 
Unrestricted net position represents the 
amounts available for general use. 
 
G. Operating and Non-operating Revenues 
and Expenses 
 
Operating revenues generally result from 
providing goods and services to individuals 
or entities separate from the Agency.  
Operating revenues and expenses are related 
to operating transactions.  The operating 
transactions are those other than capital and 
related financing activities, noncapital 
financing activities, investing activities and 
non-exchange revenues.  Operating revenues 
of the Agency includes administrative fees 
charged by the Agency and reimbursement of 
operating expenses.  
 
Non-operating revenues - Non-operating 
revenues are those revenues that do not meet 
the definition of operating revenues.  Non-
operating revenues include gifts, investment 
income and insurance reimbursement 
revenue.  Grants, entitlements, or shared 
revenues received for operations and/or 
operations or capital acquisitions, sales or 
ÃÏÎÓÔÒÕÃÔÉÏÎ ÁÒÅ ÒÅÐÏÒÔÅÄ ÁÓ ȰÎÏÎ-ÏÐÅÒÁÔÉÎÇȱ 
revenues.  Operating expenses include 
depreciation on all fixed assets. 
 
H. Compensated Absences - Accumulated 
Unpaid Vacation and Sick Pay 
 
Accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay, and 
other employee benefit amounts are accrued 
when incurred.  At December 31, 2016, the 
Agency had a deferred compensation liability 
for accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay 
of $9,606.  During 2016, the changes in 
liabilities for compensated absences were as 
follows: 
 
 
 
 

COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
Liability for compensated   
   absences, January 1   $12,449 

 Additions   9,996 

 Reductions   (12,839) 
 Liability for compensated  
   absences, December 31   $9,606 
   

 
I. Land held for Development and Resale  
 
The Agency may acquire properties to 
redevelop and resell.  The property values 
will be carried at the lower cost or estimated 
realizable value.  Properties are periodically 
reviewed or appraised for impairment and 
the carrying values are adjusted as necessary. 
 
J. Application of Restricted and 
Unrestricted Resources  
 
4ÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÐÏÌÉÃÙ ÉÓ ÔÏ ÆÉÒÓÔ ÁÐÐÌÙ ÁÎ 
expense against restricted resources then 
towards unrestricted resources, when both 
restricted and unrestricted resources are 
available to pay an expense. 
 
K. Post-Retirement Benefits  
 
In addition to providing pension benefits, the 
Agency provides health insurance coverage 
and survivor  benefits for employees and their 
survivors.  Substantially all of the Agency's 
employees may become eligible for these 
benefits if they reach normal retirement age 
while working for the Agency.  The Agency 
does not have any retired employees.  Health 
care benefits and survivors benefits are 
provided through an insurance company 
whose premiums are based on the benefits 
paid during the year.  
 
During the year, the Agency provided health 
care coverage for four active employees 
covered under the City of Glen Cove 
Community Development Agency.  
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Prior to the issuance of the Government 
Accounting Standards Board Statement 45 
ɉ'!3" τυɊȟ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙ ÆÏÌÌÏ×ÅÄ Á ȰÐÁÙ-as-
you-ÇÏȱ ÁÐÐÒÏÁÃÈ ÉÎ ÁÃÃÏÕÎÔÉÎÇ ÆÏÒ ÈÅÁÌÔÈ 
care costs in which the cost of benefits is not 
reported until after employees retire.  
However, this approach is not comprehensive 
by failing to account for costs and obligations 
incurred as the Agency receives employee 
services each year for which they have 
promised future benefit payments in 
exchange.  
 
In prior years, the Agency implemented the 
provisions of the Statement 45.  
 
Statement 45 does not require immediate 
recognition of the unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability (UAAL) as a financial-statement 
liability.  The Agency accumulates a liability 
called the net OPEB obligation, if and to the 
extent its actual OPEB contributions are less 
than its annual OPEB cost, or expense.  The 
net OPEB obligation (not the same as the 
UAAL) may increase rapidly over time if, for 
ÅØÁÍÐÌÅȟ Á ÇÏÖÅÒÎÍÅÎÔȭÓ /0%" ÆÉÎÁÎÃÉÎÇ 
policy is pay-as-you-go, and the amounts paid 
for current premiums are much less than the 
annual OPEB cost.  
 
Statement 45 requires the disclosure of 
information about the funded status of the 
plan, including the UAAL, in the notes to the 
financial statements and the presentation of 
multi -year funding progress trend 
information as a required supplementary 
schedule. 
 
L. Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions  
 
During the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2015, the IDA adopted the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 68 - Ȱ!ÃÃÏÕÎÔÉÎÇ ÁÎÄ &ÉÎÁÎÃÉÁl 
Reporting for Pensions - an Amendment to 
'!3" 3ÔÁÔÅÍÅÎÔ .ÏȢ ςχȱ ÁÎÄ '!3" 3ÔÁÔÅÍÅÎÔ 
No. 71 - Ȱ0ÅÎÓÉÏÎ 4ÒÁÎÓÉÔÉÏÎÓ ÆÏÒ 
Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date - an Amendment to GASB 
3ÔÁÔÅÍÅÎÔ .ÏȢ φψȢȱ  4ÈÅ ÐÒÉÍÁÒÙ ÏÂÊÅÃÔÉÖÅ ÏÆ 

the Statements is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting by state and local 
governments for pensions. The 
implementation of the Statements requires 
the IDA to report as an asset and/or liability 
its portion of the collective pension asset 
and/or liability in the N ew York State 
%ÍÐÌÏÙÅÅÓȭ 2ÅÔÉÒÅÍÅÎÔ 3ÙÓÔÅÍȢ 4ÈÅ 
implementation of the Statements also 
requires the IDA to report a deferred outflow 
and/or inflow for the effect of the net change 
ÉÎ ÔÈÅ )$!ȭÓ ÐÒÏÐÏÒÔÉÏÎ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ÃÏÌÌÅÃÔÉÖÅ ÎÅÔ 
pension asset and/or liability and difference 
during the measurement period between the 
)$!ȭÓ ÃÏÎÔÒÉÂÕÔÉÏÎÓ ÁÎÄ ÉÔÓ ÐÒÏÐÏÒÔÉÏÎÁÔÅ 
share of total contributions to the pension 
systems not included in pension expense.  
Also included as deferred outflows are the 
IDA contributions to the pension systems 
subsequent to the March 31, 2016 
measurement date.  See notes 9 and 16 for 
the financial statement impact of 
implementation on the financial statements. 
 
M. Standards Issued Not Yet Implemented  
 
GASB Statement No. 74 - "Financial Reporting 
for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than 
Pension Plans."  This Statement, issued in 
June 2015, replaces existing standards of 
accounting and financial reporting for 
postemployment benefit plans other than 
pension plans and also replaces existing 
requirements for defined contribution OPEB 
plans.  The provisions of this Statement are 
effective for financial statements for fiscal 
years beginning after June 15, 2016, which is 
the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2017 for 
the IDA.  This Statement is not expected to 
have a material effect on the financial 
statements of the IDA. 
 
GASB Statement No. 75 - "Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions."  This 
Statement, issued in June 2015, establishes 
new accounting and financial reporting 
requirements for governments whose 
employees are provided with OPEB, as well as 
for certain non-employer governments that 
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have a legal obligation to provide financial 
support for OPEB provided to the employees 
of other entities.  This Statement is effective 
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017, 
which is the fiscal year beginning January 1, 
2018 for the IDA.  This Statement is not 
expected to have a material effect on the 
financial statements of the IDA. 
 
GASB Statement No. 80 - "Blending 
Requirements for Certain Component Units - 
an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14."  
This Statement, issued in January 2016, 
amends the blending requirements for the 
financial statement presentation of 
component units of all state and local 
governments.  It requires blending of a 
component unit incorporated as a not-for-
profit corporation in which the primary 
government is the sole corporate member.  
The provisions of this Statement are effective 
for financial statements for years beginning 
after June 15, 2016, which is the fiscal year 
beginning January 1, 2017 for the IDA.  This 
Statement is not expected to have a material 
effect on the financial statements of the IDA. 
 
GASB Statement No. 81 - Ȱ)ÒÒÅÖÏÃÁÂÌÅ 3ÐÌÉÔ-
)ÎÔÅÒÅÓÔ !ÇÒÅÅÍÅÎÔÓȢȱ  4ÈÉÓ 3ÔÁÔÅÍÅÎt, issued 
in March 2016, establishes accounting and 
reporting standards for irrevocable split-
interest agreements with characteristics that 
are equivalent to irrevocable split-interest 
agreements in which a donor irrevocably 
transfers resources to an intermediary who 
administers these resources for the 
unconditional benefit of a government and at 
least one other beneficiary.  The provisions of 
this Statement are effective for financial 
statements for years beginning after 
December 15, 2016.  For the IDA, this 
statement becomes effective for the fiscal 
year beginning January 1, 2017.  This 
Statement is being evaluated for its effect on 
the financial statements of the IDA. 
 
GASB Statement No. 82 - Ȱ0ÅÎÓÉÏÎ )ÓÓÕÅÓ - an 
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 
φψȟ ÁÎÄ .ÏȢ χσȢȱ 4ÈÉÓ 3ÔÁÔÅÍÅÎÔȟ ÉÓÓÕÅÄ ÉÎ 
March 2016, addresses issues regarding (1) 

the presentation of payroll-related measures 
in required supplementary information, (2) 
the selection of assumptions and the 
treatment of deviations from the guidance in 
an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial 
reporting purposes, and (3) the classification 
of payments made by employers to satisfy 
employee (plan member) contribution 
requirements.  The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2016, which is the 
fiscal year beginning January 1, 2017 for the 
IDA, except for the requirements of this 
Statement for the selection of assumptions in 
Á ÃÉÒÃÕÍÓÔÁÎÃÅ ÉÎ ×ÈÉÃÈ ÁÎ ÅÍÐÌÏÙÅÒȭÓ 
pension liability is measured as of a date 
ÏÔÈÅÒ ÔÈÁÎ ÔÈÅ ÅÍÐÌÏÙÅÒȭÓ ÍÏÓÔ ÒÅÃÅÎÔ ÆÉÓÃÁÌ 
year-end. In that circumstance, the 
requirements for the selection of assumptions 
are effective for that employer in the first 
reporting period in which the measurement 
date of the pension liability is on or after June 
15, 2017, which is the fiscal year beginning 
January 1, 2018 for the IDA.  This Statement is 
not expected to have a material effect on the 
financial statements of the IDA. 
 
GASB Statement No. 83 - Ȱ#ÅÒÔÁÉÎ !ÓÓÅÔ 
2ÅÔÉÒÅÍÅÎÔ /ÂÌÉÇÁÔÉÏÎÓȢȱ  4ÈÉÓ 3tatement, 
issued in November 2016, addresses 
accounting and financial reporting for certain 
asset retirement obligations (AROs).  
Governments that have legal obligations to 
perform certain future asset retirement 
activities related tangible capital assets 
should recognize a liability based on the 
guidance in this Statement.  The 
requirements of this Statement are effective 
for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 
2018, which is the fiscal year beginning 
January 1, 2019 for the IDA.  This Statement is 
not expected to have a material effect on the 
financial statements of the IDA.  
 
GASB Statement No. 84 - Ȱ&ÉÄÕÃÉÁÒÙ 
!ÃÔÉÖÉÔÉÅÓȢȱ  4ÈÉÓ 3ÔÁÔÅÍÅÎÔȟ ÉÓÓÕÅÄ ÉÎ *ÁÎÕÁÒÙ 
2017, established criteria for identifying 
fiduciary activities of all state and local 
governments.  The focus of the criteria 
generally is on (1) whether a government is 
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controlling assets of the fiduciary activity and 
(2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary 
relationship exists.  This Statement is 
effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2018, which is the fiscal year 
beginning January 1, 2019 for the IDA.  This 
Statement is not expected to have a material 
effect on the financial statements of the IDA. 
 

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

4ÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÁÇÇÒÅÇÁÔÅ ÂÁÎË ÂÁÌÁÎÃÅs of 
$2,065,107 and $484,728 at December 31, 
2016 and 2015, respectively, are secured by 
deposit insurance provided by the FDIC of 
$250,000 for checking and money market 
accounts; and with securities held by the 
ÐÌÅÄÇÉÎÇ ÆÉÎÁÎÃÉÁÌ ÉÎÓÔÉÔÕÔÉÏÎȭÓ ÔÒÕÓÔ 
deparÔÍÅÎÔ ÏÒ ÁÇÅÎÔ ÉÎ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÎÁÍÅȢ 
 

4ÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÃÁÓÈ ÍÁÎÁÇÅÍÅÎÔ ÁÎÄ 
investment policy are as follows: 
 

3ÔÁÔÅ ÓÔÁÔÕÔÅÓ ÇÏÖÅÒÎ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÉÎÖÅÓÔÍÅÎÔ 
policies.  In addition, the Agency has its own 
written investment policy that incorporates 
the State regulations.  Agency monies must be 
deposited in FDIC insured commercial banks 
or trust companies located within the State.  
The investment officer is authorized to use 
demand accounts and certificates of deposit.  
Permissible investments include obligations 
of the U.S. Treasury, and obligations of New 
York State or its localities. 
 

Interest rate risk.  It is the risk that changes in 
market interest rates will adversely affect the 
fair value of the investment.  Generally, the 
fair values of investments with longer 
maturities are more sensitive to changes in 
market interest rates.  In accordance with its 
cash management and investment policy, the 
Agency manages its exposure to declines in 
fair values by investing its excess cash in 
money market accounts or certificate of 
deposits with maturities of less than one year. 
 

Custodial and credit risk.  4ÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÂÁÎË 
balances of deposits were either entirely 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized with 

securities pledged in third party custodial 
accounts of the pledging financial institutions 
in the Agency's name.  
 

The collateral amounts are as required to be 
held according to the Agency's custodial bank 
agreement at 105%.  Obligations that may be 
pledged as collateral are obligations of the 
United States and its agencies and obligations 
of the State and its municipalities and school 
districts.  Periodically, the Agency determines 
that the collateral or underlying securities 
have an adequate market value and have 
been segregated. 
 

NOTE 3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 

At December 31, 2016 and December 31, 
2015, the IDA had $ 10,367,000 and $0 in 
accounts receivable.  All receivables as of 
December 31, 2016 were due from RXR Glen 
Isle Partners, LLC. 
 

NOTE 4. LAND HELD FOR SALE 
 

In prior years, the IDA acquired certain 
waterfront land for commercial development.  
The City and the US Environmental 
Protection Agency incurred substantial 
expenditures to decontaminate the 
waterfront land.  The IDA has incurred 
liabilities for legal costs, planning and interest 
on loans incurred for land improvements.  On 
November 22, 2016, the IDA closed on the 
sale of the property for $15,000,000.  At the 
time of the sale, the cost of the waterfront 
land and improvements, net of impairment 
reserve of $26,357,248, was $15,000,000.  
 

The principal source of funds for the 
development of the Waterfront Property has 
been Section 108 loans.  In October 1999, the 
City, the CDA, the IDA and the County of 
.ÁÓÓÁÕ ɉȰÔÈÅ #ÏÕÎÔÙȱɊ ÅÎÔÅÒÅÄ ÉÎÔÏ ÌÏÁÎ 
agreements, pursuant to Section 108 of Title I 
of the Housing and Community Development 
Act of 1974.  The purpose of the loan was to 
develop the waterfront properties.  As of 
December 31, 2016, all section 108 loans 
related to these properties have been repaid.  
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As of December 31, 2015, Section 108 loans 
outstanding were $6,359,000 (CDA). 
 
Agreement Regarding Sales Proceeds 
 
On March 30, 1999, the Glen Cove Industrial 
Development Agency and the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency - Region 2 
entered a prospective purchase agreement 
regarding LI Tungsten Superfund and 
#ÁÐÔÁÉÎȭÓ #ÏÖÅ ÓÉÔÅÓȢ  4ÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙ ÁÃÑÕÉÒÅÄ 
these sites for commercial waterfront 
development.  The EPA indemnified the 
Agency against existing contaminates. 
 
A total of approximately $74 million in 
encumbrances, including more than $26 
million in underlying mortgage principal, was 
attached to these properties.  EPA has an 
unperfected Federal lien against the 
properties.  Under the contract, IDA agreed: 
 
1. To expend in excess of $9 million for 

economic revitalization of the sites and 
surrounding area.   
 

2. In exchange for the US covenant not to 
sue, to pay the EPA $100,000. 
 

3. Upon disposal of the sites, through sales 
or lease, to pay one of the following 
amounts to the EPA, respectively: 
 

a. 50% of any amount of sales proceeds 
received in excess of $9 million, up to 
$12.2 million. 
 

b. 40% of any amount received in excess 
of $12.2 million, up to $14.2 million, 
plus $1.6 million. 
 

c. 25% of the sales proceeds over $14.2 
plus $2.4 million. 
 

4. Not to sell the sites for less than $13.0 
million.  
 

5. Not to reduce the sales proceeds to 
account for any costs including 
redevelopment remediation, negotiating, 
brokerage, and closing costs. 

As of December 31, 2016, the amount that 
is due to EPA, is recorded as a current 
liability of $2.36 million.  As of December 
31, 2015, the payment contingent upon 
sale of the Waterfront property, was 
recorded as restricted net position of 
$2.36 million.  The formula reduces the 
sales price of $15M by 6% which 
represents the other waterfront 
properties. 

 
Development of Waterfront Properties 
 
Pursuant to an order of consent, the City of 
'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅ ÈÁÄ ÒÅÍÅÄÉÁÔÅÄ ÔÈÅ #ÁÐÔÁÉÎȭÓ #ÏÖÅ 
State Inactive Hazardous Waste Site with the 
assistance and oversight of New York State 
Department of Environmental Conservation.  
The City had also contributed to the 
remediation of the LI Tungsten Superfund 
site.  The City was recognized as one of the 
sixteen original Brownfield Showcase 
communities for its remediation efforts and 
received a Brownfield Economic 
Development Initiative grant. 
 
The interest on the Waterfront Project 
Section 108 loan was $49,445 and $25,154, 
for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 
December 31, 2015, respectively. 
 
Not included in the sale of the Waterfront 
Property, the Agency owns sidewalks, 
driveways, parking lots, walkways, and a 
landscaped area located in the Village Square, 
Section 31, Block 85, and Lot 35.  The 
carrying value of these assets is $31,650.  
 
On November 22, 2016, the IDA sold the 
Waterfront Properties to RXR Glen Isle 
Partners, LLC for the Purchase price of $15M 
less advances of $2,401,048 and a receivable 
of $2.36M, for net cash received of 
$10,238,952.  These funds were used to repay 
the debt owed by the IDA and CDA, to HUD, 
EPA, Nassau County and the City.  The IDA 
also entered into a Master Tax Agreement, 
PILOT, with the Redeveloper and received an 
administrative fee of $10M, of which, $2M 
was received at closing, $4M was received in 
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February 2017 and the balance of $4M is due 
in August 2017.   
 
On November 22, 2016, the IDA and the Glen 
Cove Local Economic Assistance Corporation, 
ɉȰÔÈÅ #ÏÒÐÏÒÁÔÉÏÎȱɊ ÅÎÔÅÒÅÄ ÉÎÔÏ Á ,ÏÁÎ 
Agreement, whereby the IDA borrowed 
$124,562,833 from the Corporation. These 
funds were raised from a Public Bond 
Offering  of the Corporation, and  are being 
used by the IDA to fund its infrastructure and 
public amenities obligations, related to the 
Garvies Point Project. The repayment of the 
bonds is from the PILOT payments on the 
property, by the property owners. These 
Bonds are non-recourse to the City and its 
Agencies 
 
NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the 
capital assets of the IDA were as follows: 
 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

 2016 2015 

Equipment $ 7,492 $ 7,492 
Less:  accumulated depreciation (5,787) (4,813) 
Total capital assets $ 1,705 $ 2,679 
   

 
NOTE 6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND 
ACCRUED EXPENSES 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2016, 
accounts payable and accrued expenses 
totaled $125,847 and were composed of 
professional fees for the Waterfront project of 
$116,560 and accrued expenses for payroll, 
taxes escrow accounts and audit services 
totaling $9,287. 
 
NOTE 7. AMOUNTS DUE TO OR FROM THE 
CITY AND CDA 
 
During 2004, the City of Glen Cove, CDA and 
IDA entered a Tri-party Municipal 
Cooperation Agreement, regarding sharing of 
resources and revitalization of the Waterfront 
properties, (Garvies Point Urban Renewal 
Area).  The Agreement formalized the long 

standing understanding among the parties 
and included the following provisions: 
 
1. The City agreed to provide office space to 

CDA and IDA in return for rental 
payments that did not exceed market 
rents. 
 

2. IDA agreed to reimburse the City for costs 
incurred for revitalization of the 
Waterfront Property. 
 

3. The reimbursements among the parties 
were to be made either periodically or at 
prescheduled times or upon the sale of 
Waterfront Property as the parties 
decided. 

 
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the 
following amounts were due to the City of 
Glen Cove and the Community Development 
Agency: 
 

AMOUNTS DUE TO 
THE CITY AND CDA 

 2016 2015 
Due to the CDA for the Waterfront 
Development expenditures financed by: 

 
 

First Section108 loan  $                 -  $4,519,000 

EFC Loan     -            - 

Second Section 108 Loan   - 1,840,000 

CDA's CDBG and other grants  3,021,865 3,156,922 

  Less: Forgiveness of debt  -  - 
Total due to the CDA  3,021,865 9,515,922 
Due to the City for the Waterfront 
development expenditures financed by:   
City's Environmental Facilities 
Corporation loan 6,489,958 7,992,004 

Total due to the CDA and City $9,511,823 $17,507,926 
 

  

 
The amount due to the City was reduced by 
$1,502,046 and $235,674 for the years ending 
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, 
respectively.  The amount due to CDA was 
reduced by $6,494,057.  The reductions were 
made in repayment of the BRLF of $247,551 
to Nassau County and 108 loans of 
$6,359,000, payroll and benefits expenses 
were increased by $112,494 for waterfront 
related professional fees.  (See Note 8) 
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NOTE 8.     COMMITMENTS AND 
CONTINGENCIES 
 
Development of the Downtown Village Square 
 
In November 2010, the IDA received a $1,000 
deposit check accompanied by an Application 
for Financial Assistance from GCVS, LLC for 
the redevelopment of the Downtown Village 
Square into a mixed use development.  In 
2016, RXR negotiated a private sale with the 
Developer for the purchase of the Village 
Square property.  Demolition is scheduled for 
spring of 2017. 
 
NOTE 9. PENSION PLANS 
 
(a) Plan Descriptions and Benefits 
Provided  
 
%ÍÐÌÏÙÅÅÓȭ 2ÅÔÉÒÅÍÅÎÔ 3ÙÓÔÅÍ ɉ%23Ɋ 
 
The CDA participates in the New York State 
ÁÎÄ ,ÏÃÁÌ %ÍÐÌÏÙÅÅÓȭ 2ÅÔÉÒÅÍÅÎÔ 3ÙÓÔÅÍ 
(ERS).  This is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer retirement system.  The System 
provides retirement benefits as well as death 
and disability benefits.  The net position of 
the System is held in the New York State 
Common Retirement Fund (the Fund), which 
was established to hold all net assets and 
record changes in plan net position allocated 
to the System.  The Comptroller of the State of 
New York serves as the trustee of the Fund 
and is the administrative head of the System.  
System benefits are established under the 
provision of the New York State Retirement 
and Social Security Law (RSSL).  Once a public 
employer elects to participate in the System, 
the election is irrevocable.  The New York 
State Constitution provides that pension 
membership is a contractual relationship and 
plan benefits cannot be diminished or 
impaired.  Benefits can be changed for future 
members only by enactment of a State 
statute.  The District also participates in the 
Public Employees; Group Life Insurance Plan 
(GLIP), which provides death benefits in the 
form of life insurance.  The System is included 
ÉÎ ÔÈÅ 3ÔÁÔÅȭÓ ÆÉÎÁÎÃÉÁÌ ÒÅÐÏÒÔ ÁÓ Á ÐÅÎÓÉÏÎ 

trust fund.  That report, including information 
with regard to benefits provided, may be 
found at www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/  
publications/ inex.php or obtained by writing 
to the New York State and Local Retirement 
System, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 
12244. 
 
The System is noncontributory except for 
employees who joined after July 27, 1976, 
who contribute 3 percent of their salary for 
the first ten years of membership, and 
employees who joined on or after January 1, 
2010 who generally contribute 3.0 to 3.5 
percent of their salary for their entire length 
of service.  In addition, employee contribution 
rates under ERS tier VI vary based on a 
sliding salary scale.  The Comptroller annually 
certifies the actuarially determined rates 
expressly used in computing the eÍÐÌÏÙÅÒÓȭ 
contributions based on salaries paid during 
the Systems fiscal year ending March 31.   
 
Contributions for the current year and two 
preceding years were equal to 100 percent of 
the contributions required, and were as 
follows: 
 

 ERS 

2016 $33,468 

2015 $74,426 

 
(b) Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, 
and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 
 
At December 31, 2016, the IDA reported the 
following liability for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liability for ERS.  The net 
pension liability was measured as of March 
31, 2016.  The total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation.  The 
)$!ȭÓ ÐÒÏÐÏÒÔÉÏÎÁÔÅ ÓÈÁÒÅ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ÎÅÔ ÐÅÎÓÉÏÎ 
liability was based on a projection of the 
)$!ȭÓ ÌÏÎÇ-term share of contributions to the 
System relative to the projected contributions 
of all participating members, actuarially 



32 

 

 

determined.  This information was provided 
by ERS in reports provided to the Agency. 
 

Actuarial measurement 
date 3/31/2016  3/31/2015  

Net pension liability $36,534 $11,629 
$ÉÓÔÒÉÃÔȭÓ ÐÒÏÐÏÒÔÉÏÎ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ 
$ÉÓÔÒÉÃÔȭÓ ÎÅÔ ÐÅÎÓÉÏÎ 
liability  0.0002276% 0.0012295% 

   

 
For the year ended December 31, 2016, the 
IDA recognized pension expense of $32,863 
for ERS.  At December 31, 2016 the amounts 
ÁÌÌÏÃÁÂÌÅ ÔÏ ÔÈÅ )$! ÂÁÓÅÄ ÕÐÏÎ ÔÈÅ #$!ȭÓ 
reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

 2016 2015 

 
Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between 
expected and actual 
experience $185 4,331 373 - 

Changes of assumptions 9,742 - - - 
Net difference between 
projected and actual 
earnings on pension 
plan investments 21,674 - 2,020 - 

Changes in proportion 
and differences 
ÂÅÔ×ÅÅÎ ÔÈÅ $ÉÓÔÒÉÃÔȭÓ 
contributions and 
proportionate share of 
contributions  2,159 10,568 2,879 - 
$ÉÓÔÒÉÃÔȭÓ ÃÏÎÔÒÉÂÕÔÉÏÎÓ 
subsequent to the 
measurement date 7,028 - 21,547 - 

Total $40,788 14,899 26,819 - 
     

 
Contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended December 31, 2016.  Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(c) Actuarial Assumptions  
 
The total pension liability as of the 
measurement date was determined by using 
an actuarial valuation as noted in the table 
below, with update procedures used to roll 
forward the total pension liability to the 
measurement date.  The actuarial valuations 
used the following actuarial assumptions: 
 

Measurement date March 31, 2016 

Actuarial valuation date April 1, 2015 

Interest rate 7.0% 

Salary scale 3.8% Average 

Decrement tables April 1, 2010 - 

 March 31, 2015 

 3ÙÓÔÅÍȭÓ %ØÐÅÒÉÅÎÃÅ 

Inflation rate 2.5% 

 
Annuitant mortality rates are based on April 
1, 2010 - March 31, 2015 3ÙÓÔÅÍȭÓ ÅØÐÅÒÉÅÎÃÅ 
with adjustments for mortality improvements 
based on MP-2014.   
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 
2015 valuation are based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period 
Apri l 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015.   
 
The long term rate of return on pension plan 
investments was determined using a building 
block method in which best estimate ranges 
of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns net of investment expense 
and inflation) are developed for each major 
asset class.  These ranges are combined to 
produce the long term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of  
 

Year ended  ERS 

2017  4,994 

2018  4,994 

2019  4,994 

2020  3,880 
Thereafter  - 
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return by each the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation.  
Best estimates of the arithmetic real rates of 
return for each major asset class included in 
the target asset allocation are summarized 
below: 
 

Measurement date March 31, 2016 

Asset type:  
Domestic equity 7.30% 
International equity  8.55% 
Real estate 8.25% 
Private equity 11.00% 
Absolute return strategies 6.75% 
Opportunities portfolio  8.60% 
Real assets 8.65% 
Bonds and mortgages 4.00% 
Cash 2.25% 
Inflation - indexed bonds 4.00% 

 
(d) Discount Rate  
 
The discount rate used to calculate the total 
pension liability was 7.0%.  The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount 
rate assumes that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions 
from employers will be made at statutorily 
required rates, actuarially.  Based upon the 
ÁÓÓÕÍÐÔÉÏÎÓȟ ÔÈÅ 3ÙÓÔÅÍȭÓ ÆÉÄÕÃÉÁÒÙ ÎÅÔ 
position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members.  Therefore the long 
term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability. 
 
(e) Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount 
Rate Assumption  
 
4ÈÅ ÆÏÌÌÏ×ÉÎÇ ÐÒÅÓÅÎÔÓ ÔÈÅ &ÕÎÄȭÓ 
proportionate share of the net pension 
liability calculated using the discount rate of 
7.0Ϸȟ ÁÓ ×ÅÌÌ ÁÓ ×ÈÁÔ ÔÈÅ &ÕÎÄȭÓ 
proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower 

(6.0%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.0%) 
than the current rate: 

 
(f) Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position  
 
The components of the current-year net 
pension asset/(liability) of the employers as 
of the respective valuation dates, were as 
follows: 
 

 (Dollars in Millions) 

Measurement date 3/31/201 6 3/31/2015  
%ÍÐÌÏÙÅÒÓȭ ÔÏÔÁÌ ÐÅÎÓÉÏÎ 
liability  $(172,303) $(164,592) 

Plan net position 156,253 161,213 
%ÍÐÌÏÙÅÒÓȭ ÎÅÔ ÐÅÎÓÉÏÎ 
asset/(liability)  $(16,050) $(3,379) 

Ratio of plan net position to 
ÔÈÅ %ÍÐÌÏÙÅÒÓȭ ÔÏÔÁÌ ÐÅÎÓÉÏÎ 
asset/(liability)  90.7% 97.95% 

   

 
(g) Payables to the Pension Plan 
 
Employer contributions are paid annually 
ÂÁÓÅÄ ÏÎ ÔÈÅ 3ÙÓÔÅÍȭÓ ÆÉÓÃÁÌ ÙÅÁÒ ×ÈÉÃÈ ÅÎÄÓ 
on March 31st.  Retirement contributions as 
of December 31, 2015 and 2014 represent the 
projected employer contribution for the 
period of April 1, 2015 through March 31, 
2016 and April 1, 2014 through March 31, 
2015, respectively based on paid ERS wages 
ÍÕÌÔÉÐÌÉÅÄ ÂÙ ÔÈÅ ÅÍÐÌÏÙÅÒȭÓ ÃÏÎÔÒÉÂÕÔÉÏÎ 
rate, by tier.  This amount has been recorded 
as deferred outflows of resources in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
 
NOTE 10. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT 
BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 
The City of Glen Cove Industrial Development 
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÒÅÔÉÒÅÅ ÍÅÄÉÃÁÌȾÄÒÕÇ ÁÎÄ ÄÅÎÔÁÌ 
insurance plans are fully insured with the  
 

 1% Current 1% 
 Decrease Assumption Increase 
 (6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%) 

%ÍÐÌÏÙÅÒȭÓ ÐÒÏÐÏÒÔÉÏÎÁÔÅ 
share of the net pension 
(asset) liability  $82,383 36,534 (2,205) 
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Empire Plan offered through New York State 
Health Insurance program and Group Health 
Incorporated.  Employees are eligible for 
these benefits, once they have reached the 
age of 55 and are hired before July 1, 1973 or 
either have reached the age of 55 and have 5 
years of qualified employment or have 30 
years of qualified employment if hired after 
July 1, 1973.  The Agency has agreed to pay 
the full cost of coverage for such retirees as 
×ÅÌÌ ÁÓ ÔÈÅ ÒÅÔÉÒÅÅȭÓ ÓÐÏÕÓÅ ÁÎÄ ÕÎÍÁÒÒÉÅÄ 
children.  Survivors are covered at full cost 
for 10 years after the death of the retiree.  
 
There were no premiums paid for any 
retirees of the IDA, as there were none. 
 
The net OPEB obligation was calculated as 
follows: 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
The actuarial valuation was performed as of 
January 1, 2015 and will be performed bi-
annually thereafter.  In the interim years, the 
Actuarial service will provide the IDA with an 
estimate.  For the year ended December 31, 
2015, the actual expense was $20,550 and for 
the year ended December 31, 2014, the 
estimate was $20,717.  An Actuarial Cost 
Method, used herein is referred to as the 
projected unit credit method. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Agency's annual OPEB Cost, the 
percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed 
to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 
2016 and 2015 are as follows: 

 
The funding status of other post-employment 
benefit obligations is described in the table 
below. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Actuarial  
Valuation  

Date 

Actuarial  
Value of 
Assets 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability  
(AAL) 

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL) 

 
Funded 
Ratio 

 
Covered 
Payroll 

UAAL as a 
Percentage 
 Of Covered 

 Payroll 

 (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b)  (c) ((b-a)/c)  

1/1/2016  $-0- $77,723,032 $77,723,032 0% $14,333,234 542% 

1/1/2014  $-0- $64,859,709 $64,859,709 0% $12,822,448 506% 

OPEB OBLIGATION 
  Percentage   
 Annual of Annual  

Fiscal Year OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB 
Ending Cost Contributed Obligation 

12/31/2016  $27,359 38% $315,234 
12/31/2015  $20,550 7% $287,875 

ANNUAL OPEB COST AND NET OPEB  
OBLIGATION FISCAL YEAR ENDING  

 2016 2015 
1. Normal Cost $19,180 $18,942 
2. Amortization of Unfunded AAL 27,649 27,104 
3. Interest 1,156 1,137 

4. Normal Cost (ARC) 47,985 47,183 
5. Interest 14,353 13,366 
6. Adjustment to Annual Required 

Contributions (18,224) (16,971) 
7. Annual Required Contribution - 

ARC  (1+2+3) 44,114 43,578 
8. Less Contribution made (16,755) (23,028) 

9. Annual OPEB Cost (Expense)  27,359 20,550 
10. Net OPEB Obligation- beginning 

of year 287,875 267,325 

11. Net OPEB Obligation end of year $315,234 $287,875 
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The amortization method used in the 
valuation is referred to as the 30-year level 
dollar.  It develops an orderly allocation of the 
actuarial present value of benefit payments 
over the working lifetime of participants in 
the plan.  The actuarial assumptions included: 
a funding interest rate of 5.0%; A 2016 
Medical trend rate of 7.0%; An ultimate trend 
rate, estimated to be reached in 2020, of 
5.0%; dental trend rate of 5.0%; and that the 
remaining amortization period (closed) at 
December 31, 2016, is 23 years.  The annual 
amortization is computed using the 
discounted present value method.  No salary 
scale assumptions were used because 
benefits are not dependent on participant 
compensation. 
 
NOTE 11. ESCROW ACCOUNTS 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2016, the 
IDA held $8,220 in escrow funds for three 
different projects. 
 
NOTE 12. RISK FINANCING 
 
The Agency is exposed to various risks of 
losses related to torts; theft, damages to and 
destruction of assets; omissions; injuries to 
employees, and natural disasters.  The Agency 
had no such losses in 2016 and 2015.  The 
ÐÏÔÅÎÔÉÁÌ ÌÏÓÓÅÓ ÉÎ ÅØÃÅÓÓ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ 
resources are covered under the City of Glen 
Cove policy of self-insurance.  The Agency 
reports claims, expenditures and liabilities 
when it is probable that a loss has occurred, 
and the amount of that loss can be reasonably 
estimated. 
 
NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The Agency has evaluated the subsequent 
events and transaction from December 31, 
2016 through the date that the financial 
statements were available to be issued.   
 
 
 
 
 

NOTE 14. GOING CONCERN 
 
The City of Glen Cove is committed to 
ensuring the long-term viability of the 
Agency.  As such, it will continue to provide 
sufficient resources to ensure that the Agency 
maintains the ability to honor its obligations 
as they become due, thus ensuring its ability 
to continue as a going concern. 
 
NOTE 15. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT  
 
The IDA corrected a prior year entry in 
December 2016 of $376,000, for revenue that 
was recognized in a prior year that should 
have been deferred as a deposit against the 
sale of the waterfront property. To correct for 
this error, the beginning net position was 
reduced for January 1, 2015.  
 
NOTE 16. CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF 
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 
 
During the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2015, the IDA implemented GASB Statement 
No. 68 - Ȱ!ÃÃÏÕÎÔÉÎÇ ÁÎÄ &ÉÎÁÎÃÉÁÌ 2ÅÐÏÒÔÉÎÇ 
for Pensions - Amendment to GASB Statement 
.ÏȢ ςχȱ ÁÎÄ '!3" 3ÔÁÔÅÍÅÎÔ .ÏȢ χρ - Ȱ0ÅÎÓÉÏÎ 
Transition for Contributions Made 
SuÂÓÅÑÕÅÎÔ ÔÏ ÔÈÅ -ÅÁÓÕÒÅÍÅÎÔ $ÁÔÅȢȱ  4ÈÅ 
implementation of these Statements resulted 
in the reporting of an asset, deferred outflow 
of resources, liability and deferred inflow of 
ÒÅÓÏÕÒÃÅÓ ÒÅÌÁÔÅÄ ÔÏ ÔÈÅ )$!ȭÓ ÐÁÒÔÉÃÉÐÁÔÉÏÎ ÉÎ 
ÔÈÅ .Å× 9ÏÒË 3ÔÁÔÅ %ÍÐÌÏÙÅÅÓȭ retirement 
ÓÙÓÔÅÍÓȢ  4ÈÅ )$!ȭÓ ÎÅÔ ÐÏÓÉÔÉÏÎ ÁÔ *ÁÎÕÁÒÙ ρȟ 
2015 has been restated as follows: 

 

Net position at beginning of year, as 
previously stated $(3,722,703) 

GASB Statement No. 68 implementation:  
Beginning System liability - 
%ÍÐÌÏÙÅÅÓȭ 2ÅÔÉÒÅÍÅÎÔ System as of 
December 31, 2014 (15,555) 

Beginning deferred outflow of 
resources attributable to 
contributions subsequent to the 
March 31, 2014 measurement date 22,879 

Cumulative effect of implementation 7,324 
Net position at beginning of year, as 

restated $(3,715,379) 
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GLEN COVE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

 SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN  

 NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL  

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 

 

   
 

  
 

 
   

 
  

 Variance 

 
Adopted 

 
Amended 

  
 Positive 

  Budget 
 

Budget 
 

Actual  (Negative) 

Revenues 
  

 
  

 
  Admin fees  $160,500  

 
$10,209,500  

 
10,209,500  -   

 Interest  100 
 

257 
 

257  -   
 Revenues from developer 23,009,000 

 
2,521,436 

 
906,436  (1,615,000) 

 Grants/bond - 
 

194,871 
 

194,871  - 

  Total revenues  23,169,600 
 

12,926,064 
 

11,311,064  (1,615,000)   

   
 

  
 

 Expenses  
  

 
  

 
  Waterfront debt expenses   214,354 

 
- 

 
-  -   

   
 

  
 

  Salaries and benefits  
  

 
  

 
  Salaries   96,494 

 
92,459 

 
92,459  -   

 Benefits  47,276 
 

91,888 
 

94,732  (2,844)   

  Total salaries and benefits  143,770 
 

184,347 
 

187,191  (2,844) 

   
 

  
 

 Professional fees 
  

 
  

 
  Audit services  7,200 

 
7,300 

 
7,300  -   

 Engineering and other consultants  325,000 
 

- 
 

-  -   
 Legal fees  536,498 

 
- 

 
-  -   

  Total professional fees  868,698 
 

7,300 
 

7,300  - 

   
 

  
 

 Administrative expense 
  

 
  

 
  Office expense  11,560 

 
7,826 

 
-  7,826 

 Rent expense to the City  3,040 
 

3,040 
 

-  3,040 
 Due to city interest/admin 22,728 

 
1,588,959 

 
-  1,588,959 

 Waterfront expenses -  -  4,199,172  (4,199,172) 
 Impairment of property  -  1,625,048  1,596,982  28,066 
 Depreciation  -  

 
974  

 
974  -  

  Total administration  37,328 
 

3,225,847 
 

5,797,128  (2,571,281) 

  Total expenses   1,264,150 
 

3,417,494 
 

5,991,619  (2,574,125) 

  Total surplus (deficit) of funds  21,905,450 
 

9,508,570 
 

5,319,445  (4,189,125)  
 Other sources/transfer of funds (16,442,631)  -  -  -   

 Change in net position 5,462,819  9,508,570  5,319,445  (4,189,125) 
 Net position, January 1, 2016, as  
     restated (5,193,380) 

 
(5,193,380) 

 
(5,193,380)  -   

   
 

  
 

  Net position, December 31, 2016 $269,439 
 

$4,315,190 
 

$126,065  $(4,189,125)   
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GLEN COVE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTHER  

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 
 

   
 

  
Unfunded 

Actuarial  
  

Liability as a 

Valuation Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered Percentage of 

Date Assets Liability  Liability  Ratio Payroll 
Covered 
payroll 

       

1/1/201 6 $     - 77,723,032 77,723,032 0% 14,333,234 542% 

   
 

   
1/1/2014  $     - 64,859,709 64,859,709 0% 12,822,448 506% 
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GLEN COVE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

SCHEDULE OF AGENCYôS PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF  

THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
2016 2015 

   
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÐÒÏÐÏÒÔÉÏÎ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ÎÅÔ ÐÅÎÓÉÏÎ ÌÉÁÂÉÌÉÔÙ 0.0002276% 0.0012295% 

   
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÐÒÏÐÏÒÔÉÏÎÁÔÅ ÓÈÁÒÅ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ÎÅÔ ÐÅÎÓÉÏÎ ÌÉÁÂÉÌÉÔÙ $36,534 $11,629 

   
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÃÏÖÅÒÅÄ ÐÁÙÒÏÌÌ $55,390 $88,566 
   
!ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ ÐÒÏÐÏÒÔÉÏÎ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ÎÅÔ ÐÅÎÓÉÏÎ ÌÉÁÂÉÌÉÔÙ ÁÓ Á ÐÅÒÃÅÎÔÁÇÅ ÏÆ ÉÔÓ 

covered - employee payroll  65.96% 13.13% 

   
0ÌÁÎȭÓ ÆÉÄÕÃÉÁÒÙ ÎÅÔ ÐÏÓÉÔÉÏÎ ÁÓ Á ÐÅÒÃÅÎÔÁÇÅ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ÔÏÔÁÌ ÐÅÎÓÉÏÎ 

liability  
90.7% 97.95% 

   
The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the March 31, 2016 and 2015 
measurement dates of the plan. 
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GLEN COVE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

SCHEDULE OF AGENCYôS EMPLOYER PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

NYSERS Pension Plan 

   
   

 
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

  
 

   
Contractually required contribution  $9,371 21,549 15,555 - - 

  
 

 
  Contributions in relation to the contractually 

required contribution  9,371 21,549 15,555 - - 

  
 

 
  Contribution deficiency (excess) $        - - - - - 

  
 

 
  &ÕÎÄȭÓ ÃÏÖÅÒÅÄ ÅÍÐÌÏÙÅÅ ÐÁÙÒÏÌÌ $55,390 88,566 124,849 - - 

  
 

   
Contributions as a percentage of covered 

employee payroll 16.92% 24.33% 12.46% N/A  N/A  
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

 
The following are not required supplementary information (RSI), under the generally 
accepted accounting principles in the United States and are provided for the purpose 
of additional analysis as required by required for statutory filing, under State of New 
York General Municipal Law 859. 
 
This other supplementary information is provided to meet the General Municipal 
,Á× ψυωȟ ÔÈÅ ÄÉÓÃÌÏÓÕÒÅÓ ÒÅÇÁÒÄÉÎÇ ÔÈÅ !ÇÅÎÃÙȭÓ 3ÔÒÁÉÇÈÔ-lease and industrial and 
civic facilities revenue bonds and notes projects. 
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GLEN COVE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY  

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

 
 
Certain industrial development revenue 
bonds issued by the Agency are secured by 
property, which is leased to companies and is 
retired by lease payments.  The bonds are not 
obligations of the Agency, City or State.  The 
Agency does not record the assets or 
liabilities resulting from completed bond and 
note issues in its accounts.  Its primary 
function is to arrange financing between the 
borrowing companies and the bond and note 
holders.  Trustees or banks acting as fiscal 
agents control funds arising from these 
transactions.     
 
The Agency receives bond administration fees 
from the borrowing companies for providing 
this service.  Such administrative fee income 
is recognized immediately upon the issuance 
of the bonds and notes.  

 
A. National Healthplex (Regency of Glen 

Cove) - Bonds  
 
The 1992 Series A Bonds, Series B Bonds and 
the Series B Note, were defeased when the 
Regency reorganized its debt on April 19, 
2016.  The Glen Cove Local Economic 
assistance Corporation issued $24M of Tax 
Exempt Bonds and The Regency also received 
a $15.5M loan from Municipal Capital 
Appreciation Partners Ill (VA), L.P for a new 
Alzheimer unit. 
 
On December 15, 2013, the IDA entered into a 
PILOT agreement with the Regency. (Project 
code 2801-13-02) The term is for 40 years 
beginning in 2014 and expires December 31, 
2049.  The IDA received an admin fee of 
$118,750.  The total projects costs are 
$15,500,000 for a new Alzheimer unit.  The 
Regency paid a total PILOT of $350,678 in 
2015 and $350,678 in 2016.  In 2016, The 
Regency paid an additional $150K for an 
extension of the PILOT to run concurrently 

 
with the bond issuance. 
The following chart depicts the PILOT 
payments from 2016-2020. 
 

PILOT PAYMENTS 
Tax Year Amount 

2016 $350,678 

2017 366809 

2018 383,682 

2019 401,332 

2020 419,793 

 
STRAIGHT LEASE AGREEMENTS  
 
A. Avalon Bay Communities, Inc. 
 
In November 2001, the IDA and Avalon Bay 
#ÏÍÍÕÎÉÔÉÅÓȟ )ÎÃȢ ɉȰÔÈÅ #ÏÍÐÁÎÙȱɊ ÅÎÔÅÒÅÄ Á 
straight lease agreement (Code Number 
2801-01-01).  Through the lease agreement, 
the Agency takes title to the property and the 
machinery and equipment and provides 
property and sales tax relief to the Company.  
Under the lease contract, the Company agreed 
to acquire an approximately 3.5 acre site 
located at Pratt Boulevard, in the City of Glen 
Cove to construct an approximately 333,000 
square foot luxury rental building together 
with 188,000 square foot enclosed parking 
facility.  The IDA agreed to buy the building 
from the Company and lease it back to the 
Company.  Thus, the Company was exempt 
from sales and use taxes, real property 
transfer taxes, and real estate taxes.  The 
Company agreed to make payments in lieu of 
taxes.   
 
The cost of the planning, development, 
acquisition, construction, and installation of 
the project facilities is estimated to be about 
$50,170,000.  The Company paid an 
administrative fee of $303,000 to the IDA. 
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As a part of the agreement, the Company, 
purchased from the City a property located at 
Glen Street for $1,100,000 and paid an option 
premium of $900,000.  The Company has 
exercised the option.  Nonpayment of fees 
constitutes default under the agreement. 
 
In June 2003, Avalon Bay Communities, Inc. 
exercised its option and purchased the Glen 
Street Parcel for $2,000,000, (2801-06-1).  
Avalon Bay had already paid $900,000 and 
agreed to pay the balance by December 31, 
2003.  It was further agreed that: 

 
1. The construction plan had to be 

completed by March 30, 2004; 
construction had to commence by 
October 1, 2004 and be completed by 
June 30, 2006. 
 

2. All building permits and other fees had to 
be paid by the later of June 1, 2004 or ten 
days after the invoices are submitted. 
 

3. Payment in lieu of taxes should begin on 
January 1, 2006. 
 

4. In lieu of $50,000 payment required by 
the Preliminary Agreement, Avalon Bay 
shall pay the IDA, $107,224.  The Agency 
will use these funds in cooperation with 
the City of Glen Cove to upgrade Pratt 
Boulevard Municipal Parking lot. 
 

In 2015, the payments made by Avalon Bay 
South, in lieu of taxes (PILOT) and the 
amount of tax exemptions were as follows: 
 

PAYMENTS MADE BY AVALONBAY SOUTH 

 PILOT  Exemptions 
    

County $219,173   $228,960  

Local 438,346  1,001,859 

School 1,028,428  2,184,587 

Total $1,685,947  $3,415,406 
    

 
 
 

!ÖÁÌÏÎ "ÁÙ .ÏÒÔÈȭÓ ɉ0),/4Ɋ ÂÅÇÁÎ *ÁÎÕÁÒÙ ρȟ 
2008.  The tax exemptions were as follows for 
2016: 
 

PAYMENTS MADE BY AVALONBAY NORTH 

 PILOT  Exemptions 

County $96,405  $79,840 

Local 185,924  349,356 

School 406,277  761,783 

Total $688,606  $1,190,979  
    

 
The IDA receives an annual administration 
fee of $2,000 for each of the buildings. 
 
C. Straight Lease Agreement with Men on the 
Moveɀ'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅ 3ÔÏÒÁÇÅȟ ,,# ɉȰ-/4-ȱɊ PHR 
Glen Cove Storage, LLC 
 
On August 1, 2011, the Glen Cove IDA entered 
ÉÎÔÏ Á ÓÔÒÁÉÇÈÔ ,ÅÁÓÅ !ÇÒÅÅÍÅÎÔȟ ɉȰ0ÉÌÏÔ 
!ÇÒÅÅÍÅÎÔȱɊ ×ÉÔÈ -ÅÎ ÏÎ 4ÈÅ -ÏÖÅ-Glen 
Cove Storage LLC. Code # (2801-11-01), 
regarding the property located at 88-90 Hazel 
Street, City of Glen Cove.  The total cost of the 
project was approximately $7,553,000.  
MOTM/PRGC is required by the contract to 
create at least 3 new full time jobs within one 
year after the scheduled completion date and 
maintain these jobs throughout the term of 
the lease.  The IDA collects a $1,000 annual 
admin fee from MOTM/PRGC.  
 
MOTM paid an administrative fee of $60,148 
to the IDA.  The PILOT commenced in the tax 
year 2012-2013 and will last for 10 years.  In 
December 2013, MOTH sold to PR Glen Cove 
3ÔÏÒÁÇÅ ,,#ȟ ɉȰ02'#ȱɊ Code # (2801-13-01.  
The IDA received and admin fee of $70,375.  
02'# ÁÓÓÕÍÅÄ -/4-ȭÓ 0),/4 ÆÏÒ ÎÉÎÅ ÙÅÁÒÓ 
beginning in 2014 and are also required to 
employee 3 full time equivalents.  The total 
purchase price was $18,100,000.  PRGC in is 
required under the lease contract and 
payments in lieu of taxes agreement to make 
the following future real property taxes 
payments.  PRGC paid $225,005, in 2016. 
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REAL PROPERTY TAXES PAYMENTS 
Tax Year Amount 

2015-2016 $204,193 

2016-2017 225,005 

2017-2018 246,446 

 
D. Straight Lease Agreement with TDG Glen 
Cove LLC ɉȰTDGȱɊ Ȱ'ÌÅÎ #ÏÖÅ -ÏÖÉÅ 4ÈÅÁÔÒÅȱ 
 
On December 27, 2013, the IDA entered into a 
PILOT Agreement with TDG Glen Cove, LLC. 
(Project code # 2801-12-03) The purchase 
price was $5,523,135.  The PILOT term is for 
15 years and began in 2014.  During 
construction 25 jobs were created and 8 full 
time positions post construction in the first 
year.  In the second and third years 6 and 7 
full time positions, are required respectively, 
per the lease agreement.  The Movie theatre 
opened in April 2014.  TDG paid $66,300 in 
tax payments for 2016.  The following are the 
real property tax payments. 
 

REAL PROPERTY TAXES PAYMENTS 
Tax Year Amount 

January 2016 $66,300 

January 2017 67,626 

January 2018 68,979 

January 2019 70,358 

 
In December 2014, the IDA closed on a PILOT 
agreement with Stanley Park.  Project Code 
(2801-01-2014).  Stanley Park, an existing 
Low Income Housing project in Glen Cove, 
completed a 40 year HUD PILOT in 2013 and 
requested a PILOT for 7 years from the IDA to 
allow it to repay real estate taxes owed to the 
City of Glen Cove as well as to prevent a 
substantial rent increase to its existing 
tenants.  The IDA received a $5,000 
administrative fee. The PILOT for Stanley 
Park will begin in 2016.  The following are the 
future payments negotiated under this PILOT: 
 
 
 
 
 

Year Amount 
2016 50,000 

2017 52,000 

2018 54,000 

2019 56,000 

2020 58,000 

2021 58,000 

 
In December  2015, the IDA entered into a 
lease agreement with 50 Glen Partners LLC. 
Project code (2801-15-01).  The PILOT will 
begin in the 2016-2017 tax year.  One full 
time employee is currently employed and the 
project cost is $4,380,000 and will pay for the 
construction to build individual office space 
for rental to other businesses.  The IDA 
received a fee of $38,250. Taxes paid in 2016 
were $100,240 and tax exemptions were 
$178,306. 
 
The IDA closed on the Waterfront 
Revitalization Project in November 2016.  
The IDA entered into a PILOT agreement with 
RXR and received and administrative fee of 
$10M. The PILOT will begin in 2017 and will 
benefit the City of Glen Cove, its citizens and 
Nassau County by reclaiming blighted 
industrial waterfront property for public 
benefit and enjoyment through creating open 
space, luxury and workforce housing and 
retail/office spaÃÅȢ 282ȭÓ ɉÒÅÄÅÖÅÌÏÐÅÒɊ 
Garvies Point waterfront destination will 
bring 460 new jobs during the construction 
phase of 5-6 years, and 545 jobs post-
completion. There will also be new tax 
revenues and new money infused into the 
Glen Cove economy.  
 
On December 28, 2016, the IDA entered into a 
PILOT agreement with Michael S. Puntillo 
$ÅÖÅÌÏÐÍÅÎÔ #ÏÍÐÁÎÙȟ ,,#Ȣ ɉȰ3ÁÍÕÅÌ 
0ÉÅÒÃÅȱɊ 4ÈÅ 0),/4 ÂÅÇÉÎÓ ÉÎ ςπρχ ÁÎÄ ÔÈÅ 
IDA received an administrative fee of $40K.  
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SCHEDULE OF SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
BONDS AND STRAIGHT LEASES 

(Continued) 
 

   
 STRAIGHT LEASES 

  

National 
Healthplex 

 

Fair Housing  
Development 

 

Avalon 
Bay 1 

 

Avalon 
Bay 2  

PHR GC 
Storage, LLC  

TDG Glen 
Cove, LLC 

         
    

Project Code 
 

2801-13-02 
 

2801-14-01 
 

2801-01-1  2801-06-1  2801-13-01  2801-13-03 

Project Purpose: 
 

Construction 
 

Housing 
 

Construction 
 

Construction  Self-Storage  Retail Trade 

Total amount of lease $ N/A  $ N/A  $ 67,836,474 $ 25,864,145 $ 7,553,000 $ 5,523,135 

Benefited Project Amount: $ 15,500,000 $ N/A  $ N/A  $ N/A  $ 7,553,000 $ 5,523,135 

Total Project Amount: $ 15,500,000 $ 0 $ 25,854,145 $ 5,397,577 $ 7,553,000 $ 5,523,135 

Original-Bond/ Note Amount: $ - $ N/A  $ N/A  $ N/A  $ N/A  $ N/A  
         

    

Organization:  Nonprofit 
 

Yes 
 

No 
 

No 
 

No  No  No 

Federal tax Status 
 

Tax exempt 
 

Taxpaying 
 

Taxpaying 
 

Taxpaying  Taxpaying  Taxpaying 

New tax revenues if no 
        

    

Exemption granted 
 

-0- 
 

-0- 
 

-0- 
 

-0-  -0-  -0 - 

Method of financial 
assistance         

    

Other than tax exemption: 
        

    

Type 
 

None 
 

None 
 

None 
 

None  None  None 

Amount 
 

None 
 

None 
 

None 
 

None  None  None 

Exemptions:  
        

    

Sales tax ɀ 
        

    

State 
 

-0- 
 

-0- 
 

-0- 
 

-0-  -0-  -0- 

Local 
 

-0- 
 

-0- 
 

-0- 
 

-0-  -0-  -0- 

Real property tax ɀ 
        

    

County $ 37,740 $ 38,338 $ 228,960 $ 79,840 $ 18,886 $ 11,723 

Local $ 163958 $ 167,757 $ 1,001,859 $ 349,356 $ 82,639 $ 49,328 

School $ 357,517 $ 365,799 $ 2,184,587 $ 761,783 $ 180,198 $ 107,561 

Mortgage recording 
 

-0- 
 

-0- 
 

-0- 
 

-0-  -0-  -0- 

Total exemptions $ 558,946 $ 571,894 $ 3,415,406 $ 1,190,979 $ 281,723 $ 168,161 
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SCHEDULE OF SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

BONDS AND STRAIGHT LEASES 
(Continued) 

 

  
BONDS  STRAIGHT LEASES 

  

National 
Healthplex 

 

Fair Housing  
Development 

 

Avalon 
Bay 1 

 

Avalon 
Bay 2  

PHR GC 
Storage, LLC  

TDG Glen 
Cove, LLC 

Project Code 
 

2801-13-02 
 

2801-14-01 
 

2801-01-01 
 

2801-06-01  2801-13-01  2801-13-03 

Payment in lieu of taxes  
        

    

   To all eligible governments 
        

    

County $ 38,575 $ 7,000 $ 219,173 $ 96,405 $ 12,291 $ 5,811 

Local 
 

91,176 
 

14,350 
 

438,346 
 

185,924  52,850  20,689 

School 
 

220,927 
 

28,650 
 

1028,428 
 

406,277  139,052  38,877 

Total $ 350,678 $ 50,000 $ 1,685,947 $ 688,606 $ 184,008 $ 65,377 

Total exemptions net of RPTI 
        

    

   Section 485 Exemptions 
 

-0- 
 

-0- 
 

-0- 
 

-0-  -0-  -0- 

Full-Time Equivalent Jobs created & 
retained         

    

Full-Time Equivalent Employees at 
        

    

   Project Location- prior to IDA Status 
 

-0- 
 

1 
 

-0- 
 

-0-  -0-  -0- 

   Original estimate of jobs to be created 
 

16 
 

-0- 
 

20/150*  
 

14/100*   3/25*   5 

   Original estimates of jobs to be retained 
 

16 
 

1 
 

-0- 
 

-0-  3  5 

Number of current full-time  
        

    

    Equivalent employees 
 

47 
 

1 
 

21 
 

14  3  34 

Number of FTE Jobs Created 
 

47 
 

-0- 
 

21 
 

14  3  34 

Number of jobs retained during 
        

    

   The fiscal year 
 

47 
 

1 
 

21 
 

14  3  34 

Number of construction jobs created 
        

    

  During the fiscal year 
 

16 
 

-0- 
 

-0- 
 

-0-  -0-  -0- 

During construction. 
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COMPLIANCE SECTION 
 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

 

 

 
 

 

  


